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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE
MARKET (“GEM") OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE
OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK
EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a high investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the
Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more
suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities
traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for
the contents of this report, makes no representation as to its
accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance
upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of Sing Lee Software
(Group) Limited (the “Company”) (the “Directors”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars
given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having
made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of
their knowledge and belief the information contained in this
report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not
misleading or deceptive and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this
report misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement
FTEHREFE

BUSINESS REVIEW
Overall Business of the Group in 2014

During the year, the Group achieved outstanding results
and surpassed our annual business goal. The addition of
“Bank-Hospital Express” and “Bank-School Express” further
strengthened our traditional portfolio, which includes
“Bank-Business Express”, capital and risk control products
and banking outsourcing service products. Capital and
risk control products, which form the largest part of our
portfolio, registered a growth of over 40%, while the banking
outsourcing service products grew over 26%.

In light of the on-going structural reform of the financial
market in China, such as the tighter capital control imposed
by the People’s Bank of China on commercial banks, and the
standardization of the management of the online and offline
markets, our offerings have enjoyed more opportunities in
the market, and our R&D investment registered a positive
return one year ahead of schedule, contributing to our overall
performance. As the State Council further implemented
industry-specific policies, “Bank-Hospital Express” and “Bank-
School Express” both recorded significant growth. In particular,
the sales of “Bank-Hospital Express” surged by over 40% along
with the medical informatization in China.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Banking outsourcing service products and “Bank-School
Express” remain the core big data products of the Group. Based
on the mobile payment business, we will consolidate our big
data and online businesses to form a unique 020 (offline to
online) model. The Group is also exploring the feasibility of
entering the related markets.

Despite the declining expenses, we will continue to implement
stringent cost control and strengthen our risk control on overall
operation and individual businesses in order to identify new
revenue streams and lower the costs.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHREFE

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT €]

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to express HAAZERREZGH —EAZHBANEERZFER
sincere gratitude to all shareholders for their support and to all R M ENEE 2 B THE  tLoh » R ATRE L FE
employees for their loyalty and dedication. In addition, | would AEEEFE - AEBMH - HLER R ERBITHA
also like to extend heartfelt appreciation to our customers, B Z{Z0 MEE  BUA RO R -

partners, suppliers and bankers for their trust and support.

Hung Yung Lai =
Chairman REmLE
20 March 2015 —E-RF=HA=+H
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the development and sales
of information and network technologies and services to the
financial industry in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

Revenue of the Group comprises of:

December 2014 (“the financial
year”), the Group recorded a total revenue of approximately
RMB48,908,000, an increase of 47% as compared to
the year ended 31 December 2013 (2013: approximately
RMB33,364,000).

For the year ended 31

BF %5 O R

AEBTEEFEARKNE ([HE])EERHR
BELHEERTAENGES BRI RRE -

AEEMNEXBERE:

HE-Z-—NF+_A=Z+—BIEFE(TE
WMFEE]) AEEHGHEHERAHNARE
48,908,0007T ' B A F R EAE 1 4047% (= F
—=FHEW AL ARE33,364,0007T) °

Revenue

2014 2013

—F-mF —T=F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥FTT AR For

Sales of software products $HE S E 8,525 4,166

Sales of related hardware products HEMRBEGHER 5,557 2,819
Provision of software-related technical IR SN AR B Bl

support services SRR 34,826 26,379

48,908 33,364

The increase in the turnover of the Group was mainly
attributable to the increase of 32% in the revenue of the
Group's provision of software-related technical support
services when compared to the same period of last year. Cost
of sales for the year ended 31 December 2014 increased
to approximately RMB27,392,000 (2013: approximately
RMB23,554,000). The Group’s gross profit ratio increasing to
44% (2013: 29%) was mainly due to our effective cost control
measures in the year.

AEBEERENEZHRANE B RE R4
2 $ T 2 1% AR 745 B 25 6F [B) EA b B R 4932 % FT
H-BE-_Z-—NE+-_A=+—HIEFE XK
EEZHERNA EAZEHARE27,392,0007T
ZE—=F:H AR¥23,554,00000) - A&
EZEMRLEAZTLI4% (ZT—=F:29%) -
FTERAANAEBMRAEBMERLT SEAEX
BES R & -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Cont’d)

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December 2014
is decreased by 35% to approximately RMB11,657,000 (2013:
approximately RMB17,881,000). For the distribution and selling
it is decreased by 21% to RMB6,831,000 (2013:
approximately RMB8,608,000). The decrease in administrative

expenses,

expenses and distribution and selling expenses were due to
our effective cost control measures. Other income included
refund of value added tax, government grants subsidy related
to products and interest income; and other gains and losses
included exchange differences and fair value changes in
investment fund.

Finance costs for the year ended 31 December 2014 was
approximately RMB957,000,
compared to the same period of last year. (2013: approximately
RMB970,000).

not much movement when

The Group recorded a profit of approximately RMB571,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2014, representing a substantial
improvement of the results of the Group as compared to the
net loss of approximately RMB18,203,000 for the year ended
31 December 2013.
administrative, distribution and selling expenses are the main

Increase in revenue and decrease in

factors leading to the profit.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company
recorded equity-settled share-based payment of approximately
RMB592,000 (2013: RMB2,252,000).
share-based payment for the year ended 31 December 2014

The equity-settled
was allocated between the cost of sales, distribution and
selling expenses and administrative expenses amounting to
RMB86,000, RMB50,000 and RMB456,000 respectively.

We will continue striving our best to increase sales and
strengthen our cost control measures. With the products of our
Group becoming more mature in the market and the effective
cost control, we expect that financial results of the group

would be further improved in the coming year.

BiEERE (&)
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EBHANEARKE6,831,000L (ZT—=
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DN

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2014, the Group's loans from a shareholder
of approximately RMB37,068,000, which bear interest at 3.3%
—3.5% per annum (2013: RMB32,252,000, which bear interest
rate of 3.3% per annum).

In addition, the Group has a new bank borrowing from a
bank in the PRC with a principal amount of RMB3,100,000
(2013: Nil) to finance the purchase of a new office premise in
Hangzhou, the PRC, which is unsecured,
Base Rate in the PRC plus 15%.

interest bearing at

No interest was capitalized by the Group during the year (2013:
Nil).

As at 31 December 2014, the Group held cash and cash
equivalents denominated in RMB, US dollars and HK dollars,
amounted to approximately RMB12,217,000. (2013:

RMB15,233,000)

The gearing ratio of the Group, based on total liabilities over
total assets, as at 31 December 2014 was approximately 126%
(2013: 143%).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year, our employee exercised 1,000,000 share
options granted on June 2013. As at 31 December 2014, the
total number of issued ordinary shares of the Company was
840,730,000 shares (2013: 839,730,000 shares).

ACQUISITION AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES
AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

The group did not have any material acquisitions or disposals of
subsidiaries and affiliated companies, or significant investments
during the year.

BERREESMBILR

R-ZE—NE+-A=+—H AEBEHKE
EREEEDN A ARE37,068,0007T  F F| &
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R#32,252,000T  FREFEH 2 =2=) -
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21,000,000 & i 1 - E bk AR R EEITLZ
EmMR M AA 840,730,000/ (—ZF— =%
839,730,0000% ) °

MEREEANRWERLE

AR B AEE - A E ARSI E
)i UNC)

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED 7|4 (£H) RHER AT )




10

Management Discussion and Analysis
EERBNWR DM

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Segmental information is presented for the Group as disclosed
on note 6 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had 261 employees
(2013: 271 employees), including both the PRC and Hong
Kong employees. Remuneration and bonus policy are basically
determined by the performance of the individual employees
and financial results of the Group. Total staff costs for the
year amounted to approximately RMB21,817,000 (2013:
RMB20,223,000).

The Group adopted a share option scheme, details of which
were set out in the Report of the Directors.

CHARGE ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2014, the Group did not have any charges
on group assets.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
AND EXPECTED SOURCE OF FUNDING

Details of the Group's future plans for material investments or
capital assets and their expected source of funding have been
stated in the Company’s prospectus dated 30 August 2001
under the sections headed “Statement of Business Objectives”
and “Reasons for the New Issue and Use of Proceeds”

respectively.
EXPOSURE TO EXCHANGE RATE FLUCTUATION

The Group’s revenue generating operations are mainly
transacted in RMB. The directors consider the impact of foreign
exchange exposure to the Group is minimal.

2 BER

RERE BTSRRI RO MY A6 3 55 -

BEEH
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R REE AEEME RELBER D IZE
MEIREEANKEMEE BHE_FT—H
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TT) e
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES HEEE

As at 31 December 2014, the Group did not have any material R -Z—MFE+-_F=+—8 AKNEEWTET

contingent liabilities (2013: Nil). MBEAXEEE(ZZ—=F:8)-
PROSPECTS OF NEW PRODUCTS HEMWA =

Please refer to the Chairman’s Statement for a discussion on B wmEL2ETIERE2T0Tm-

this.
FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY OF THE hEFENTBEHRE
GROUP
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
HEZ-Z-NE H2-Z-=-F HE-ZT--F HE-T——F H2-Z-ZF
+=ZA=+-B +ZA=t-B +ZA=+-B +ZA=t—-8 +ZA=1+-H
LEE LEE EFE EFE EEE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB'000
ABEFT AREFT AREFTL ANREFT AREFTL
Revenue HEBA 48,908 33,364 36,080 18,840 15,435
Profit (Loss) attributable to BREGEHN (EE)
shareholders 571 (18,203) (11,334) (37,483) (63,664)
Total assets BELE 42,004 29,730 44,736 90,135 62,760
Total liabilities BE8E (53,574) (42,471) (44,002) (79,839) (40,675)
Net (liabilities)/assets (BfE)/BEFE (11,570 (12,741) 734 10,296 22,085

4< Annual Report 2014 =% — 4 £} SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED 5 /%4 (£8) RAER AR ) 1
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Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management

EERSREEEZBE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Hung, Yung Lai, aged 70, the Chairman of our Group
and the director of Strategic Development Committee. Mr.
Hung, who graduated from Shanghai Conservatory of Music,
is also among the founders of the Group. He is in possession
of more than 30 years’ company management and strategy
programming experience and over 20 years' successful
experience in managing high-tech companies; hence he is
familiar with the China business management and marketing
planning. Mr. Hung is now in charge of the Group’s macro-
strategy and the enterprise’s development.

Mr. Cui, Jian, aged 61, a Director and Vice Chairman of our
Group. Mr. Cui is one of the founders of Hangzhou Singlee
Software Co., Ltd. and has been working for our Group since
its founding in 1993. Mr. Cui is responsible for the investment
programming of the Group. Before joining the Group, he
used to work for China Hangzhou Automatization Research
Institute and Hangzhou Huayuan Computer Application
Research Institute as director and president of their Developing
Departments.

Mr. Hung Ying, aged 45, a Director of our Group, had been
the deputy general manager of Hangzhou Singlee Technology
Co., Ltd. and Hangzhou Singlee Software Co., Ltd of the Group
from April 2007 to April 2011. Prior to joining the Group, he
had worked as the marketing director and general manager in
Beijing San Ding Ti Lian Network Technology Company Limited
from May 2001 to December 2005. Mr. Hung graduated in
information, social and management sciences (majoring in
business administration) from University of Paisley and obtained
an EMBA from Peking University. Mr. Hung has several years
of experiences in management, and is specialized in market
planning and sales. Mr. Hung is the son of Mr. Hung Yung Lai,
the chairman and executive director of the Company.

HITES

FEESEL 105 ARBEES T EREE
HREZBSGTE-RELETEANEENAIMA
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REIEERRERENERE -T2 FRNEE
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EEEL 61 ARBEEREIEF -#ELE
RN REBERABNEIRAZ — L BER
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BZa G EFEMMNE BT LT E
MMEERMBERAEAEETERIEELE
& o

RS L ASE AEBERE R _TTLF
MAZEZZT——F WA BB AEREBMNFF
BIEBRA R ERTNFFEGBR QA & 245K
B-RMAREBZA REER_TT—FH
AE_ZZ R4+ - MRt R =R EHE
BRI AR A RETTISEE RACIRT - A&
S 4 P University of Paisley& i~ #t & M B IE R
BR(EBEIBMER)EX REEFIRAE
EMBAZf - R LA A BHFN QR EELR -
LEBRAMIGRERBEE - REETAEAR
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Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEEBEZEBE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND
AUDITING COMMITTEE

Mr. Pao, Ping Wing, Jp, aged 67, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the company in
December 2003. He had been actively serving on government
policy and executive bodies, including those relating to town
planning, urban renewal, public housing and environment
matters for 24 years. He has been appointed as a Justice of
the Peace of Hong Kong since 1987. He was an ex-urban
councilor. He obtained a Master of Science Degree in Human
Settlements Planning and Development from the Asian Institute
of Technology in Thailand in 1980. He was elected as one of
the Ten Outstanding Young Persons of Hong Kong in 1982 and
one of the Ten Outstanding Young Persons of the World in
1983. He is an independent non-executive director of Oriental
Press Group Limited, New Environmental Energy Holdings
Limited, UDL Holdings Limited, Zhu Zhou CSR Times Electric Co.
Ltd., Soundwill Holdings Limited, Maoye International Holdings
Limited, HL Technology Group Limited and JC Group Holdings
Limited, all of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Tam, Kwok Hing, aged 67, an independent non-executive
director of the Group, is the fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He was the founding
partner of Wongs & Tam, Certified Public Accountants, a public
accounting firm in Hong Kong, set up in 1973 and is now a
consultant of the accounting firm. He is also an independent
non-executive director of HL Technology Group Limited.

Mr. Lo, King Man, Jr sBs, 88s, aged 77, an independent non-
executive director of the Group. Mr. Lo began his career in
academic administration at the University of Hong Kong and
became deputy director of the former Hong Kong Polytechnic
in 1986. He was also appointed director of the Hong Kong
Academy for performing arts in 1993. Mr. Lo is the Justice of
Peace in Hong Kong, and he has an extensive record of public
service. He has also served on the governing or executive
bodies of numerous educational and cultural organizations. He
was appointed as independent non-executive director of Chow
Sang Sang Holding Int'l Ltd. in September 1994.

BYFAITESREREZES

SRS TEE P 6755 IN20035F 12 AR ER
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Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management

EERSREEEBEZEBE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chang, Loong Cheong, aged 68, is the Chief Consultant
of the Group. Mr. Chang is currently a director of World
Target Properties (Shanghai) Limited; an independent non-
executive director, chairman of audit committee and member
of nominating committee of China Technology Development
Group Corporation (a company listed in US) and a director of
JadelLink Hotel Shanghai.
member of senior management of Orient Overseas Container

Mr. Chang served as an executive

Line, Ltd. and Island Navigation Corporation International Ltd.;
a director and general manager of Noble Ascent Company Ltd;
a director of Shanghai Xinhua Iron & Steel Co, Ltd; a director
of Oriental International (Shanghai) Ltd.; an independent non-
executive director, chairman of audit committee and member
of remuneration Committee of Guangshen Railway Company
Limited (a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange,

New York Stock Exchange and Shanghai Stock Exchange).

Mr. Tong, Tsz Kwan, aged 35, is the Financial Controller and
the Company Secretary of the Group. Mr. Tong holds a Master
of Business Administration Degree in Finance from University of
Southern Queensland. He is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a Certified Public
Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Tong is a fellow member of The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and a fellow member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries. Prior to
joining the Group in June 2007, he has accumulated over
several years of accounting, auditing and financing experience.
He is now responsible for accounting, financing and company
secretarial duties.
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

The directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Group are the development and
sale of information and network technologies and services to
the financial industry in the PRC. There were no significant
changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during
the year.

The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 30
to the consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group's revenue and contribution to the loss
from operation by principal activities and geographical area of
operations for the year ended 31 December 2014 is set out in
note 6 to the financial statements.

RESULTS

The results for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
page 50.

The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment
of dividend.
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The 2015 AGM is scheduled to be held on Tuesday, 12 May
2015. For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at
2015 AGM, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Friday, 8 May 2015 to Monday, 11 May 2015, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be registered. In order to be eligible to attend
and vote at 2015 AGM, unregistered holders of shares of the
Company should ensure that all the share transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the share registrar of the Company in Hong Kong, Tricor
Abacus Limited, Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30pm on
Thursday 7, May 2015.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A Summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
audited consolidated financial statements, is set out on page 11
of the annual report.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out on page 52 and page 128
respectively.

DONATIONS

No charitable and other donations were made by the Group
during the year.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Report of the Directors

EEWES

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the Company's share capital and share options
scheme are set out in note 25 and 26 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Bye-laws or the law of Bermuda which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Pursuant to the Company Act 1981 of Bermuda, share premium
of the Company is distributable to the shareholders. At 31
December 2014, the company had no reserve available for
distribution to equity of the company. (2013: Nil)

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentage of purchases and sales for the year ended 31
December 2014 attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and
customers are as follows:

Purchases
33% (2013: 23%)
82% (2013: 69%)

— the largest supplier
— five largest suppliers combined

Sales
6% (2013: 9%)
24% (2013: 21%)

— the largest customer
— five largest customers combined

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5%
of the Company's share capital) had an interest in the major
suppliers or customers stated above.

IRAS K 58 I
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Report of the Directors

EEWES

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

So far as is known to any directors or chief executives of
the Company, as at 31 December 2014, shareholders (other
than directors or chief executive of the Company) who had
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or
more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying
rights to vote on all circumstances at general meeting of any
other members of the Group or substantial shareholders as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company

FERRREMALTRREG - HERSD
REREIEZERRKXR

AR BUEAIEFSRITRAHA R _F—N
FH_A=+t—HB U TAREEFLHE K
I XVER SR 2 K FE3HB 1 KRB M A R B W EE
RARBBRMDHAABRDOEROBR (KR
BESERITRAHRIN RERIEEFEH
ERAAEBR TR ASBEERAMBKE RRR
RARE EBRBZEMBRIRAEEZ5%3K A
b HREES LB GRAE3BGRATFENE
SO AT RS &R :

(=) A2FABREHEIOIBTZEBER

Number of shares held

FERGHAE

Capacity/ Long Short Percentage of

Name of shareholder Nature of interest position position shareholding

R & 513/ EREH ¥R BER2 EBBERFESHE

Goldcorp Industrial Limited Beneficial owner 287,855,000 - 34.28%
ERnEEA (note 1)
(Btat1)

Great Song Enterprises Limited Beneficial owner 287,855,000 - 34.28%
BRNEB A (notes 1 and 2)
(HraE1k2)

Mr. Hung Yung Lai Corporate interest 287,855,000 - 34.28%
RERLIE R A4 EEER (notes 2 and 4)
(Hti2k4)

Beneficial owner 16,025,000 - 1.91%

ERBEEA

Ms. Li Kei Ling Corporate interest 287,855,000 - 34.28%
THEHB L SEERE R (notes 2 and 3)
(Krat2k3)

Mdm lu Pun Family interest 368,880,000 - 43.93%
B 2+ KB (note 5)
(Bt3t5)
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Report of the Directors

EEWES

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (Cont’d)

FTERRRHEMATRARSD - HERH
REERBRRKRE (&)

(b) Share options (Z) Bl
Number of

Capacity/ Number of underlying
Name of shareholder Nature of interest options held shares
BRER B mER BFEZEREZE HEER BB E
Mr. Hung Yung Lai Beneficial owner 65,000,000 65,000,000
REERIB A& B o
Notes: Biat -
1. Goldcorp Industrial Limited is a limited liability company incorporated 1. Goldcorp Industrial Limited & — & 74 5% & Bz 22 Bf

in the British Virgin Islands equally owned by Mr. Hung Yung Lai and
Great Song Enterprises Limited which in turn is wholly owned by Ms
Li Kei Ling.

2. The Shares were held by Goldcorp Industrial Limited.

3. Ms. Li Kei Ling controls more than one third of the voting power of
Great Song Enterprises Limited which in turn holds more than one
third of the voting power of Goldcorp Industrial Limited. Ms Li Kei
Ling is deemed, by virtue of the SFO, to be interested in the same
287,855,000 shares held by Goldcorp Industrial Limited.

4. Mr. Hung Yung Lai controls more than one third of the voting power
of Goldcorp Industrial Limited. Mr. Hung Yung Lai is deemed, by
virtue of the SFO, to be interested in the same 287,855,000 shares
held by Goldcorp Industrial Limited.

5. These shares are beneficially owned by Goldcorp Industrial Limited
as mentioned in Note 4 of above. Mr. Hung Yung Lai is deemed
to be interested in the same 287,855,000 shares held by Goldcorp
Industrial Limited. Mdm Iu Pun is the wife of Mr. Hung Yung Lai and
is deemed to be interested in these shares in which Mr. Hung Yung
Lai is deemed or taken to be interested for the purpose of the SFO.
She is also deemed to be interested in the 65,000,000 share options
and the 16,025,000 shares beneficially owned by Mr. Hung Yung Lai
as mentioned in Note 4 above for the purpose of SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, the directors
or chief executives of the Company were not aware of any
other person (other than directors or chief executives of the
Company) who had an interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provision of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who was interested
in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share
capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meeting of any other member of the Group or any other
substantial shareholders as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

EAMRIZERET AR ARBEEER
Great Song Enterprises Limited bA4f & J% 4 £ @)
#54 M Great Song Enterprises Limited 8l g2
HR L+t 28HE-

2. #itP&1% F Goldcorp Industrial Limited$ 4 °

3. FHB Lz +EH|Great Song Enterprises Limited
MIEEREB=5 22— MiE%EFAGoldcorp
Industrial Limitedt)y R EEBB =52 —°
ERBSFRBEKRA FTHERZITHRE
# A Goldcorp Industrial Limitedfris A
287,855,000 s 7 £ 47 [7] # &2

4. RRENE St A5 Goldcorp Industrial Limited 845
ERBBE=DZ — - EREFRHAEE - ARE
18 5t A 4% 18 18 ¥ 8 Goldcorp Industrial Limited it
F575#9287,855,0008% % 15 1) 48 A ##E 25 o

5. #ZZ W1 HGoldcorp Industrial Limited® 2§
HAE I EXHFAT EREEERS
£ B Goldcorp Industrial Limitedfr 5 A& &
287,855,0000% & 7 #9418 [ # 25 « Pk &0 £ /R AR
BEBEENET BEZSHFRBEE BHE
ERFRRRE A EWEER R REAZZRG K
T R s o 1R BT R 4RTIl - IRIRE H
HEEA - I EER RIS L A E ER
A5 65,000,0000% % # % 16,025,000 0% A7
MR A -
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# M EIEIRPIEXVERE2 M 38D M R ANR
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Report of the Directors
EERES

DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2014, the interests or short positions of the
directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of Laws of Hong
Kong (the “SFO")) which were notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests or short positions which he/she
is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO);
or which were required to be entered into the register required
to be kept by the Company, pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or which were required, pursuant to Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Shares in the Company:

EERFTETHRAERRND - HERS
REEIEZERRKXR

RZE—NF+_A=+—8 KARREFRIT
Eﬁzﬁ@ﬁkﬂzﬁﬁiiﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁa BEE (TR

BH MG GG EXVE (BBEFIFE571E) )
ZEHJ&% HERD REEE R FEAERE
7 ﬁ&ﬁﬁiﬂwﬁﬂ%XWB%WS&%S“J Axe R

NAIRBRFIzERSI AR (BREESRES
% K EIR & Jmuxﬁux%&zﬁ{fiﬂﬁzﬁﬁm
B E) BEIS RBAEBRIIE3521E
AEERRARNFEFOE LMK BRIEZEZER
RIS 48F5.67KEMET AN T KR
FrmEmREEnT

RDTFRAD

Number of shares held

BEEROEE
Capacity/ Long Short Percentage of
Name of Directors Nature of interest position position shareholding
IRR A 514 EmER HaE R FAEREXBEISH
Mr. Hung Yung Lai Corporate interest 287,855,000 - 34.28%
RERIIS EE (note 1)
(HtaE1)
Beneficial owner 16,025,000 - 1.91%
EREBA
Mr. Hung Ying Beneficial owner 4,040,000 - 0.48%
RRAB A EREBA
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Report of the Directors

EEWES

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (Cont’d)

Shares in associated corporation:

EEREIBRTHAERRKR®D - HE KD
RiEER 2 BR KK (&)

HBCEE R

Number of ordinary shares

held in Goldcorp
Industrial Limited

(note 2)
M Goldcorp Industrial Limited
FEEEBERYE
(Hiat2)
Capacity/ Long Short Percentage of

Name of Directors Nature of interest position position shareholding
EEpng B3, mER Ha BrR FAERFBESL
Mr. Hung Yung Lai Beneficial owner 1 - 50%
REELIE EREEA
Notes: it

1. The Shares were held by Goldcorp Industrial Limited. Mr. Hung Yung Lai has
50% interest in Goldcorp Industrial Limited.

2. The entire issued capital of Goldcorp Industrial Limited as of 31 December
2014 composed of 2 ordinary shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none of
the Directors and chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares and
debenture of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would
have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required, pursuant to
Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

1. LR M Goldcorp Industrial Limited5 4  BEBR1E %t
4 A Goldcorp Industrial Limited$% A 50% ) #£ 25 o

2. Goldcorp Industrial Limited R = —F+=-A=+—
Az2EBB8TRAAMKR L B -

B EXFEEEN RZE—NFE+_A=+—
B HSEEERARAETETRAENRART
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EARRAEMR A2 EDZIORE (BRERIEE
HEHEGIBBGRXREREERERES
ZREBIORR) » LN AR RIRERE 75 L
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted on 27 August 2001 for the primary purpose of
providing incentives to directors and eligible employees, and
has been expired on 27 August 2011. Under the Scheme,
the Board of Directors of the Company may grant options
to eligible employees, including directors of the Company
and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company.
The Scheme would be valid and effective for a period of ten
years commencing on the adoption date and have come to its
expiration. All other respects of the provisions of the Scheme
shall remain in full force and holders of all options granted
under the Scheme prior to such expiry shall be entitled to
exercise the outstanding options pursuant to the terms of the
Scheme until expiry of the said options. As a result, a new share
option scheme which was approved on 28 February 2011 (the
“New Scheme"), take effect immediately after the expiry of the
existing Scheme. The principal terms of the New Scheme are
similar with the Scheme.

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders
at the special general meeting of the Company held on 28
February 2011 (the “SGM"), the Scheme mandate limit was
refreshed so that the Company was authorized to grant share
options under the existing Scheme for subscription of up to a
total of 81,184,000 shares, representing approximately 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the
SGM.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
the exercise of options granted and to be granted to each
Participant (including both exercised and outstanding options)
in any 12 months period up to the date of grant must not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue at the date of grant.

The subscription shall be a price determined by the board of
directors at its absolute discretion and shall not be less than the
higher of the closing price of the share on the date of grant of
the option and the average closing price of the shares for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant of
the option.

Brestal

ARE B E ([%EEDR_FF—F
NAZ+EERRA TEENREBEFR
EEKREE WERZTE——F/N\AZT+H
& RIBEZAE ARREFTSIRNAERE
B (BREARRMEMBARZESR) RIEBRK
- URBARARD - ZA 8 HEAEREE
Mo Rt ERAERER & EEXZmER
Mo ESEEREAR REZER B ZA
BREREZFHA AR R - RIEZE
ZIEFR - BHEEEITERETE ZBRE
HERMMBBES R -E - R=F——%=A
—tARCESEAFETE (THETE])  RER
BatEIE MR BN AR - #rat 8l 2 £ 2 FME
At EIHREEL

BEBRER-_T——F A=+ N\BEITZAR
NAIREFERIAE ([BREFRAE]) LBBz
LBRBER FEBEELREEEN  UEARQ
AIERERBRITZZ TERETRBEE AR
%81,184,000/% & 15~ MM (AR A F K
EHAARRAREBITRALI10% -

EERLBHEA+T _EASRS2EERE
THEEREBERNOBERE (BESTERS
RITEHBEE) MBS BT RE T HT
MDA FEAREEAHEETROMN
1% °

RBERAHESTE2RRT HEZERS D
R B E B AR W 8 R IR B A
AHAAEEXANFHRHEEMEFTHR
=

C SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED 7|4 (£H) RHERA T

Annual Report 2014 —F— &£ )7




4( Annual Report 2014 — & —FFf

Report of the Directors

EEWES

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

Options granted shall be deemed to be accepted upon receipt
of the acceptance of offer letter from the grantee within 28
days from the offer date, together with a remittance in favour
of the Company of HK$1 by way of consideration for the grant.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Scheme at any time during a period notified by the board
to each grantee but may not be exercised after the expiry of 10
years from the date of grant.

On 9 October 2007 the Company granted 47,550,000 options
to subscribe for shares in the Company under the Scheme at
an exercise price of HK$0.368 per share to its employees of
the Group. Shares of the Company were at closing price of
HK$0.36 immediately before the day on which options were
granted.

On 19 January 2010 the Company granted 20,900,000 options
to subscribe for shares in the Company under the Scheme at
an exercise price of HK$0.20 per share to its directors and
employees of the Group. Shares of the Company were at
closing price of HK$0.20 immediately before the day on which
options were granted.

On 16 August 2010 the Company granted 8,990,000 options
to subscribe for shares in the Company under the Scheme at
an exercise price of HK$0.84 per share to its employees of
the Group. Shares of the Company were at closing price of
HK$0.84 immediately before the day on which options were
granted.
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Report of the Directors

EEWES

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

On 10 January 2011, the Company granted 65,000,000 share
options to subscribe for shares in the company under the
Share Option Scheme at an exercise price of HK$0.730 per
share to Mr. Hung Yung Lai, Chairman of the Group. Shares of
the Company were at closing price of HK$0.730 immediately
before the day on which options were granted. The grant of
share options to Mr. Hung Yung Lai and the specific mandate
to allot, issue and deal with the shares of the Company upon
conversion of the foregoing share options were approved by
the SGM held on 28 February 2011.

On 13 January 2011, the Company granted 19,260,000 share
options to subscribe for shares in the Company under the Share
Option Scheme at an exercise price of HK$0.714 per share
to its employees of the Group. Shares of the Company were
at closing price of HK$0.690 immediately before the day on
which options were granted. The grant of share options to its
employees of the Company and the specific mandate to allot,
issue and deal with the shares of the Company upon conversion
of the foregoing share options were approved by the SGM held
on 28 February 2011.

On 24 June 2013, the Company granted 59,780,000 share
options to subscribe for shares in the Company under the
Share Option Scheme at an exercise price of HK$0.1122 per
share to a Director and its employees of the Group. Shares of
the Company were at closing price of HK$0.101 immediately
before the day on which options were granted.
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Report of the Directors

EEWES

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

The summary details of options granted are as follows:

BRETE (&

BRECHEFBOT

)

Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of
share options share options share options share options share options share options
Name of directors outstanding as at granted during  exercised during  cancelled during lapsed during  outstanding as at
and employees Exercise period 1 January 2014 the year the year the year the year 31 December 2014
R-g-mE RZE-DF
-A-f tZA=t-H
AT AR Brefik BREIE LRES AT
BSREEANERNE  ORH BREHR BREHR BREHR BREHR BREHR kE%A
Continuous contract 9 April 2008 to 18,850,000 - - - - 18,850,000
employees (other than 8 October 2017
directors)
REANEE (EZR)) -ZENEBANEE
ZE-tETANR
Pao Ping Wing 19 July 2010 to 600,000 - - - - 600,000
18 January 2020
BRR ZE-FELATNRE
ZZ-ZE-A1N\A
Tam Kwok Hing 19 July 2010 to 600,000 - - - - 600,000
18 January 2020
HEE ZE-FELATNRE
ZRCRE-ATI\R
Lo King Man 19 July 2010 to 600,000 - - - - 600,000
18 January 2020
EEX ZELATNER
“FCEE-RTAR
Hung Ying 19 July 2010 to 2,500,000 - - - - 2,500,000
18 January 2020
k2 ZE-FELATNRE
“ECRE-ATAR
Continuous contract 19 July 2010 to 9,280,000 - - - (610,000) 8,670,000
employees 18 January 2020

(other than directors)
BEANER (EZRIN

“E-FELATNBE
“T-TE-FT)\R
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EERES

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d) BRESE (&)
Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of
share options share options share options share options share options share options
Name of directors outstanding as at granted during  exercised during  cancelled during lapsed during  outstanding as at
and employees Exercise period 1 January 2014 the year the year the year the year 31 December 2014
R-g-mE R-%-mE
-A-H tZB=1+-A
AR Bk Brefik BromE BREEH AR
EEnRRANERRE  fTfH BRE%E ERE%E ERE%E BREYE ERE%A hEHE
Hung Ying 16 February 2011 to 1,550,000 - - - - 1,550,000
15 August 2020
it ZR--FCATARE
“TCRENATRA
Continuous contract 16 February 2011 to 1,740,000 - - - (310,000 1,430,000
employees 15 August 2020
(other than directors)
FRANEE(EERN) T AtREE
“TCRENATRA
Hung Yung Lai 28 February 2011 to 65,000,000 - - - - 65,000,000
9 January 2021
fRRE ZE-—5_AZtN\RE
ZE_-£-fnA
Continuous contract 28 February 2011 1o 13,760,000 - - - (490,000) 13,270,000
employees 12 January 2021
(other than directors)
REANEE (BER)) —E--F-A-TNEE
“E-f-f1CR
Hung Ying 24 June 2013 to 4,040,000 - - - - 4,040,000
23 June 2023
k2 CR-ZERACTREE
CRCZERAZTOA
Continuous contract 24 June 2013 to 26,850,000 - (1,000,000) - - 25,850,000
employees 23 June 2023
(other than directors)
FRENEE(EER)N)  ZE-ZESACTREZ
CRCZERAZTOA
145,370,000 - (1,000,000) - (1,410,000) 142,960,000
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Report of the Directors

EEWES

DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Apart from as disclosed under the paragraph headed
“Directors’ and chief executives’ interest and short positions
in shares, underlying shares and debentures” below and the
share option scheme disclosures in note 26 to the financial
statements, at no time during the year were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in the company
granted to any director or their respective spouse or children
under 18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by
them; or was the Company, or the Company’s subsidiary or
holding company or a subsidiary of the Company’s holding
company or a party to any arrangement to enable the directors
to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT SHAREHOLDERS

Save for the directors, management shareholders and
substantial shareholders as herein disclosed, the directors are
not aware of any persons who as at 31 December 2014 were
entitled to exercise or control the exercise of 5% or more of
the voting power at general meetings of the Company and
who were able, as a practical matter, to direct or influence the
management of the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

None of the directors, management shareholders or substantial
shareholders of the Company or any of their respective
associates, as defined in the GEM Listing Rules, has engaged
in any business that competes or may compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group or has any other
conflict of interests with the Group during year ended 31
December 2014.

EEBERD 2R

BREXTEFRTETHRABRERND HEK
R EEE R NMRE | —BRAARES M
BRI E26PT B 2 BBERT 815 RFR
EMER HEEFHARETAZEBILRMW
TNARZ FLREREMAEREARR B M
BN 2 BRI RATETMZEFERN MARA L
ARRRZMBRAHZERRBRARE 2R
REIZMBRBANMEELERN LR EEST
EAE A A BB ERE R

EEERR

BRANFEEZES TEERERFERE
I BEEBENTNER-—_E—NE+ A =+—
B FAATARREARRRBRERE E1T7EK
EHIS% A ERERE REAER LIgERF
BARRNFRZEHRE-

Bt

BE HEFEEAQF 2 LHREF

i
bl
lkﬂ U

5

RAZRFE ARFIHEEFME R RGE
BE HEHABEAARFZ EWES-

REBEE-ZZT—NF+_A=+—RHLEFE &
RAIZEF BEEREBRRATERRIUEME
EXEZHBEAL (EERAER TR B
EETEAKRERS (TRERIER) BFX
Al RERE T 2R RIS el B A R B A T E A

Rl -

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED $i &%k (££8) BRH AR A = ) 27




28

Report of the Directors

EEWES

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company's corporate governance practices are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report on page 31 to
page 46 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, based on information that is
publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the Directors, the Directors confirm that the Company
maintained the amount of public float as required under the
GEM Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company for the period from 1 January
2014 to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Hung Yung Lai (Chairman)
Cui Jian

Hung Ying

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Pao Ping Wing

Tam Kwok Hing

Lo King Man

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Bye-Laws,
Mr. Cui Jian and Mr. Pao Ping Wing will retire from office by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, offers himself for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from Mr. Pao Ping Wing, Mr. Tam Kwok Hing and
Mr. Lo King Man and as at the date of this report still considers
them to be independent.
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Report of the Directors

EEWES

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not terminable within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 12 to 14
of the annual report.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the directors of the Company and
the five highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in
note 11 and 12 to the financial statements, respectively.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS AND
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 28 of the notes to the consolidated
financial statements, no contracts of significance in relation to
the Group's business to which the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Company or a controlling shareholder or
any of its subsidiaries, had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed in note 28 of the notes to the consolidated
financial statements, the connected transactions are exempted
from the reporting, announcement and shareholders’ approval
requirement pursuant to the GEM Listing Rule 20.23.

EERBAL
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EEWES

il

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS BEESN

No contracts concerning the management and administration R E2HFRN  HER TR FET A ARG ES
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the ZEEXFMNEZRNH2ABEERITRZE
Company were entered into or existed during the year. K

AUDITOR ZELEm

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 HE-ZT—NFE+-A=+—HItFEZ4&4
December 2014 were audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu M IEIRERGEH e BIER H S tMTTHER H
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re- W¥EMEELTFTAEERBERBE(T-
appointment.

On behalf of the Board REESFE

Hung Yung Lai FE

Chairman REmb 8

Hong Kong, 20 March 2015 &8 —FE—AF=ZA=+H
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Corporate Governance Report

TREARES

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognises the value and importance of achieving
high corporate governance standards to enhance corporate
performance, transparency and accountability, earning the
confidence of shareholders and the public. The Board strives
to adhere to the principles of corporate governance and adopt
sound corporate governance practices to meet the legal and
commercial standards by focusing on areas such as internal
control, fair disclosure and accountability to all shareholders.

Saved as disclosed below, the Company complied with the code
provisions in Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) and
Corporate Governance Report which set out in Appendix 15
in the GEM Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December
2014. The Company periodically reviews its corporate
governance practices to ensure its continuous compliance.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions during the twelve months
ended 31 December 2014 as set out in GEM Listing Rules
5.48 to 5.67. The Company has made specific enquiry of all
the Directors and the Company was not aware of any non-
compliance with the required standard of dealings regarding
the securities transactions by Directors.

Specific employees who are likely to be possession of
unpublished price-sensitive information of the Group are also
subject to compliance with the same Code of Conduct. No
incident of non-compliance was noted by the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2014.
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Corporate Governance Report
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The board of directors of the Company comprises:

Executive Directors Hung Yung Lai
Cui Jian

Hung Ying

Independent Non-executive Pao Ping Wing

Directors Tam Kwok Hing

Lo King Man

The board formulates overall strategy of the Group, monitors
its financial performance and maintains effective oversight over
the management. The board members are fully committed
to their roles and have acted in good faith to maximize the
shareholders’ value in the long run, and have aligned the
Group’s goals and directions with the prevailing economic and
market conditions. Daily operations and administration are

delegated to the management.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the
preparation of financial statements of each financial period,
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and of the results and cash flow for the period.
Although the Group had net liabilities as at 31 December
2014, the Board obtain financial support confirmation from
its shareholder and director — Mr. Hung Yung Lai that remove
significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, the Board therefore continues to adopt the
going concern approach in preparing the financial statements.

The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board for
providing with Board papers and related materials, for ensuring
that all Board procedures and all applicable laws, rules and
regulations are followed, and for reporting to the Chairman
on governance matters. All directors have unrestricted access
to the advice and services of the Company Secretary. The
Company secretary keeps minutes of all meetings which are
available for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable
notice by any Directors. The Company Secretary also plays an
essential role in the relationship between the Company and its
shareholders, including assisting the Board in discharging its

obligations to shareholders pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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TEREARES

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

In order to assist the Directors to carry out their duties, the
Board has set out terms of reference, enabling the Directors to
seek independent professional advice upon reasonable request
under appropriate circumstances and the fees are payable by
the Company.

Independent non-executive directors were appointed for a
period of two years commencing from their employment dates.

In compliance with rule 5.05A, 5.05(1) and (2) of the GEM
Listing Rules, the Company has appointed three independent
non-executive directors representing more than one-third
of the Board and at least one of whom has appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The Company has received from each
independent non-executive director an annual confirmation of
his independence, and the Company considers such directors
to be independent in accordance with each and the various
guidelines set out in rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.

With the various experience of both the executive directors
and the non-executive directors and the nature of the Group's
business, the Board considered that the directors have a
balance of skills and experience for the business of the Group.

The Company has arranged for Directors’ and Officers’ liability
Insurance to indemnify its Directors against potential liabilities
incurred by them in discharging their duties. The increase
coverage for the Directors is reviewed on an annual basis.

The Company has established a Nomination Committee. The
Nomination Committee will evaluate the independence of all
independent non-executive Directors each year and make sure
that they comply with the independence requirement of the
Listing Rules. All members of the Board are not related to one
another in all aspects, including finance, family and business.
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AL A i s/
TEERBREE

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL
OF DIRECTORS

Each of the Executive Directors and Independent Non-Executive
Directors of the Company has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of 2-3 years. Such term is
subject to his re-appointment by the Company at an AGM
upon retirement. The articles of association of the Company
provide that any Director appointed by the Board, (i) to fill a
casual vacancy in the Board, shall hold office only until the next
following general meeting of the Company and shall be subject
to re-election at such meeting and (ii) as an addition to the
Board shall hold office until the next AGM of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election.

TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS

Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities.
Each newly appointed Director would receive an induction
package covering the Group’s businesses and the statutory and
regulatory obligations of a director of a listed company. The
Group also provides briefings and other training to develop
and refresh the Directors’ knowledge and skills. The Group
continuously updates Directors on the latest developments
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices. Circulars or
guidance notes are issued to Directors and senior management
where appropriate, to ensure awareness of best corporate
governance practices.
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AL e N/
e BRBES

TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS BEEREIRIE (&)
(Cont’d)

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Directors R_-Z—MNFE—A—HZ_Z—NF+_A

participated in the following trainings: =+t HHEAN ZEF2ELTE:
Type of
Trainings
3% 3 5 Bl
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Hung Yung Lai AERRIE A& A, B
H-Z
Mr. Cui Jian EE S A, B
F-Z
Mr. Hung Ying RREEE A, B
Bz
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYKHITES
Mr. Pao Ping Wing IR &R S A A, B
F-Z
Mr. Tam Kwok Hing KB & A, B
Bz
Mr. Lo King Man EENAEE A, B
H-Z
A:  Study corporate governance issue relating to directors’ duties F: ARANREZTBECCEEREE
B:  reading newspaper, journals and updates relating to the economy, general 7@ MEABERE —REBLESHES 2 HE TP
business or directors’ duties etc. BHEH
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AL A i s/
TEERMREE

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman of the Company is Mr. Hung Yung Lai. The
roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are
segregated and assumed by two separate individuals who have
no relationship with each other. The Chairman of the board
is responsible for the leadership and effective running of the
board, while the Chief Executive Officer is delegated with the
authorities to manage the business of the Group in all aspects
effectively.

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. The
division of responsibilities between the chairman and chief
executive officer should be clearly established and set out
in writing. Subsequent to the resignation of Mr. Chan Kam
Fai, no replacement of the post of the chief executive officer
has been fixed as at 31 December 2014. The Board will keep
reviewing the current structure from time to time. If candidate
with suitable knowledge, skills and experience is identified,
the Company will make appointment to fill the post of chief
executive officer as appropriate.

BOARD COMMITTEES & CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The board has established three Board committees, namely,
the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Audit Committees, for overseeing particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees have been
established with defined written terms of reference, which
are posted on the GEM's website www.hkgem.com and the
Company's website at www.singlee.com.cn. All the Board
committees should report to the Board on their decisions or
recommendations made.

The practices, procedures and arrangements in conducting
meetings of Board committees follow in line with, so far as
practicable, those of the Board meetings set out in above.

ERERATHAE

ARAEFERERREEE - TFETHRAZDN
AE R HRALE N (EEAYE bz M
RBEEMNBER - EFSTRAERETE BR
EZAROEE MITRARNERTEN
BRI E R AR E ST A ER-

REBECEERTREA2 UG FANES - £ /&
HITBRESNACEARD X TEHE— AR
RERT - ETFETRAHCHEHBERBTREATE
WIAEESE - BRIBIBAEERE R HEZ
T-MF+ZA=+—HIE THRAERBLC—
EEZ - EEeRENREERIINERSEA
B-BEFUBE IR BAINRE SHRAR
EEME - REEREROAE ARREREE
Ry BT 1F R AR DA A R B 2 ZE R

EELEEREEERB

i

e

EEKRVFMNEES REZESRERZE
—HEFEZEG UEEBEARAEHER
THIE - FMBEESFLZERHARRR EENE
& E - 25 E T EH N B E R AL www.hkgem.
com K AR 2 A 48 hwww.singlee.com.cn o & &
ELEGAMNESYEREMEL 2RESHE

=
=

=
&
=
&

EFZEBEQRTERIEA B RTHEER
ATERTHEEXAREFTEERIFR
BFRZHFER 2

C SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED 7|4 (£H) RHAERA T

Annual Report 2014 —F— &£ )7




4( Annual Report 2014 —Z—FFf

Corporate Governance Report

TREARES

BOARD COMMITTEES & CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS (Cont’d)

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties set out in the Code which included
developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance, training and continuous professional
development of Directors, and reviewing the Company's
compliance with the code provision in the Code and disclosures
in this report.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee was established in November
2005. The chairman of the committee is Mr. Pao Ping Wing,
and other members include Mr. Hung Yung Lai, Mr. Tam Kwok
Hing and Mr. Lo King Man. The written terms of reference of
the Remuneration committee which have been revised effective
on 26 March 2012 to comply with the new requirements set
out in the revised code provisions are posted on the GEM
website and the Company’s website.

The remuneration committee has been charged with the
responsibility of making recommendations to the Board on
appropriated policy and structures for all aspects of all Directors
and senior management remuneration. The remuneration
committee considers factors such as salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities
of the Directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the
Group and desirability of performance-based remuneration.

The remuneration committee has considered and reviewed the
remuneration packages and emoluments of Directors and senior
management and consider that are fair and reasonable.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee was established in March 2012.
The chairman of the committee is Mr. Hung Yung Lai and
other members include Mr. Pao Ping Wing, Mr. Tam Kwok Hing
and Mr. Lo King Man. The written terms of reference of the
nomination committee which have been made effective on 26
March 2012 to comply with the new requirements set out in
the revised code provisions are posted on the GEM website and
the Company’s website.

The duties of the nomination committee are mainly to
review the structure, size and composition of the Board and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company's corporate strategy;
identify suitable candidates for appointment as directors;
make recommendations to the Board on appointment or re-
appointment of an succession planning for directors; assess
the independence of independent non-executive directors;
formulate and review the Board Diversity Policy and the
progress on achieving the objectives set for implementing the
policy.

The nomination committee considered the past performance,
qualification, general market conditions and the Company’s
articles of association in selecting and recommending
candidates of directorship. The nomination committee
discussed and reviewed the retirement and re-election of
Directors.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The
chairman of the audit committee is Mr. Pao Ping Wing and

The audit committee was established in August 2001.

other members include Mr. Tam Kwok Hing and Mr. Lo King
Man, all of them are independent non-executive directors.
The written terms of reference of the audit committee which
have been revised effective on 26 March 2012 to comply with
the new requirement set out in the revised code provision are
posted on the GEM website and the Company’s website.
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TREARES

AUDIT COMMITTEE (Cont’d)

The primary duties of the audit committee are mainly to review
the financial information and reporting process, internal control
procedures and risk management system, audit plan and
relationship with external auditors and arrangements to enable
employees of the Company to raise, in confidence, concerns
about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal

control or other matters of the Company.

The Company has complied with Rules 5.28 of the GEM
Listing Rules in that at least one of the members of the Audit
Committee (which must comprise a minimum of three members
and must be chaired by an Independent-non executive director)
is an independent non-executive director who possesses
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting related
financial management expertise.

The Audit Committee held five meetings during the year, so
that full attention can be given to the matters submitted. The
Group's unaudited quarterly results for the 3 months ended
31 March 2014, 9 months ended 30 September 2014 and
interim results for the 6 months ended 30 June 2014 as well as
audited annual results for the year ended 31 December 2014
have been reviewed by the audit committee, which was of the
opinion that the preparation of such results complied with the
applicable accounting standards and requirements and that
adequate disclosure have been made.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY BEEEREZSZTILBER

The Company has had policy of diversity in board appointments ARG —BHETZEBR KBENIREES
as reflected in the current composition of the Board which is &R#AEA WA TEI EEeERERE &
characterised by significant diversity, whether considered in ®ESR&BAIE ZEZTLEE:

terms of nationality, professional background and experience,

as shown in the following illustrations:

A Role of directors A EEAG
Executive Directors HITES 3
Independent Non-Executive Directors BAEITES

@ Executive Directors
BWITES

© Independent
Non-Executive Directors

BAUIFRITES
B  Nationality
B H%£
Hong Kong, China FEEE 5
China H 1

® Hong Kong, China
PEEE

China
R

* Nationality is based on passport, and does not necessarily reflect ethnic origin.  BEBTRIREREE YR FERMER-
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (Contd) EEEREZ IR (&)
C Professional background C BXES
Business Im 2
Computer and information technology B R B R E A 1
Human settlements planning and development AEEEREREBRE 1
Accounting & Auditing i RER 1
Education and cultural development HE R ER 1
@ Business
FEIES

@ Computer and information technology
B REHRER

@ Human settlements planning
and development

AFEEBRRREIER
® Accounting and Auditing

@t RER

Education and cultural development

HERXCER

D Age D ik

45-54 1
55-64 1
65-74 3
75-84 1

@ 45-54

® 55-64

® 65-74

75-84
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (Cont'd)

We believe that board diversity enhances decision-making
capability and a diverse board is more effective in dealing with
organisational changes and less likely to suffer from group
thinking. We recognise that board diversity is an essential
element contributing to the sustainable development of the
Company. The objectives of this Policy are, with the support of
our shareholders, to have a Board which

a) is characterised by a broad range of views arising from
different experiences when discussing business;

b) facilitates the making of informed and critical decisions;
and

¢) has sustainable development as its core value,

and thus promotes the interests of all our stakeholders,
particularly the long-term interests of our shareholders, fairly
and effectively.

For the purpose of this Policy, we considers the concept of
diversity incorporates a number of different aspects, such
as professional experiences, business perspectives, skills,
knowledge, gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity and length of service. The achievement of these
objectives is measurable on an objective review by shareholders
of the overall composition of the Board, the diversity of
background and experience of individual directors and the
effectiveness of the Board in promoting shareholders’ interests.

In order for shareholders to judge for themselves whether
the Board as constituted is a reflection of diversity, or a
gradual move to increased diversity, on a scale and at a speed
which they support, we shall continue to provide sufficient
information to shareholders about the size, qualifications,
characteristics etc. of each individual Board member and
therefore, the Board as a whole.
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TREARES

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (Cont'd)

The Nomination Committee has been charged with the
review of the Board Diversity Policy on a periodic basis. The
Nomination Committee believes that the approach of review of
the Policy may take the form of an analysis of the Board in the
different aspects of diversity as set out above having regard to
the sustainable development of the Company, supplemented
with shareholders’ feedback on the diversity of the Board and
its overall effectiveness in promoting shareholders’ interests.

ATTENDANCE RECORD AT MEETINGS

The attendance record of each Director at Board meetings,
Audit committee meetings, Remuneration Committee meetings
and Nomination Committee meetings during the year ended 31
December 2014 is set out in the following table:

EEEMESUILBE (&)

REZEQERBEEHRNESENEZ T
BE  ZESRERHIE A AR QRN
ARERR PTEFEELARITENST
i ABZERRUEFENSTLUR
ZTLE R ER R MR BEERUARENE
8o

SR HELE

REFERBE_Z—NOF+-_A=+—HItF
EHFE Q.T/ETZ% EnZBegR FHEZA
CER REZECCHEMREARGZLEH
RIE&:

Audit Nomination Remuneration

Board Committee Committee Committee

Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting

=g ERZEE REZEE §MzEe

Directors = ] ] E E ]

Number of meetings held BRETRY 5 5 1 1
Number of meetings attended/ eHELRERY/
Number of meetings held SEBIRY

Executive Directors HTES

Mr. Hung Yung Lai EEREE 5/5 - /1 171

Mr. Cui Jian EREE 5/5 - - -

Mr. Hung Ying RELE 5/5 - - -
Independent non-executive directors BUFETES

Mr. Pao Ping Wing BRRLE 5/5 5/5 /1 171

Mr. Tam Kwok Hing KEELE 5/5 5/5 /1 171

Mr. Lo King Man ERX%i4E 5/5 5/5 /1 171
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TEERBRES

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

The fees in respect of audit services provided by the
independent auditor to the Group for the year ended 31
December 2014 amounted approximately HK$523,000 (2013:
HK$535,000). No other significant fee was incurred for non-
audit services during the year (2013: Nil).

DIRECTORS’ AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements which give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the company and its subsidiaries, in accordance
with accounting principle generally accepted in Hong Kong.
The Directors’ responsibilities in the preparation of the financial
statements and the auditor’s responsibilities are set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report in this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company has conducted a review on the effectiveness
and adequacy of the Group’s internal control system during
the year. Management is primarily responsible for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal controls, while
the Board of Directors and its Audit Committee oversee the
actions of management and monitor the effectiveness of the
controls that have been put in place. The Company convened
meetings periodically to discuss financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions. The
Directors are of the view that the key areas of the Group's
internal control system are reasonably implemented with rooms
for improvement. The Group will use its endeavor to implement
changes in order to further improve the Group’s internal
control system.
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TREARES

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has adopted Shareholders Communication Policy
with objective of ensuing that the Shareholders and potential
investors are provided with ready, equal and timely access to
balanced and understandable information about the Company.

The Company has established a number of channels to
communicate with the Shareholders as follows:

(i) corporate communications such as annual reports,
quarterly reports, interim reports and circulars are issued in
printed form and are available on the GEM website www.
hkgem.com and the Company’s website at www.singlee.
com.cn;

(i) periodic announcements are made through the Stock
Exchange and published on the respective websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company;

(iii) corporate information is made available on the Company'’s
website;

(iv) annual and special general meetings provide a forum for
the shareholders to make comments and exchange views
with the Directors and senior management; and

(v) the Hong Kong share registrar of the Company serves
the Shareholders in respect of share registration, dividend
payment and related matters.

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and
enhancing communication with the existing shareholders and
potential investors. It welcomes suggestions from investors,
stakeholders and the public enquiries to the Board or the
Company may be sent by post to the Company’s principal place

of business in Hong Kong.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, there is no
significant change in the Company’s memorandum and articles
of association.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

As one of the measures to safeguard shareholder’s interest
and rights, separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’
meetings on each substantial issue, including the election of
individual directors, for shareholders’ consideration voting. All
resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meeting will be voted
by poll pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules and the poll voting
results will be posted on the GEM website and the Company’s
website after the relevant shareholders’ meeting.

Extraordinary general meeting may be convened by the Board
on requisition of shareholders holding not less than one —tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company or by such shareholders
who made the requisition (the “Requisitionists”) (as the
case may be) pursuant to Article 58 of the Bye-laws. Such
requisition must state the object of business to be transacted
at the meeting and must be signed by the Requisitionists
and deposited at the registered office of the Company or
the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.
Shareholders should follow the requirements and procedures as
set out in such Article for convening an extraordinary general
meeting. Shareholders may put forward proposals at general
meeting of the Company by sending the same to the Company
at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong.

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders
may send written enquiries to the Company. Shareholders may
send their enquiries or requests in respect of their rights to the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 3 BRD R S

Deloitte.
=)

TO THE MEMBERS OF SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial
statements of Sing Lee Software (Group) Limited (the
"Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 50 to 128, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2014, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant
to the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of

the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2014, and of its financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to note
2 to the consolidated financial statements which indicates
that the Group’'s total liabilities exceeded its total assets by
approximately RMB11,570,000 as at 31 December 2014. This
condition, along with other matters as set forth in note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements, indicates the existence of a
material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

20 March 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meR

@R HMEE KSR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ—=—ZF—F+ - =+—HIFFZF

2014 2013
—E-mF —F—=
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
k2 AR T AR For

Revenue SHE WA 6 48,908 33,364
Cost of sales 8 65 B AR (27,392) (23,554)
Gross profit EF 21,516 9,810
Other income/(expense) Ha A (AX) 1,213 (147)
Other gains and losses H b Wz & g1 7 (613) 1,191
Distribution and selling expenses DIELIEEE R (6,831) (8,608)
Administrative expenses EEBH (11,657) (17,881)
Impairment loss recognised JE W E 5 AR X

on trade receivables BB E 1B (1,004) (1,152)
Research and development costs ot B A AR - n
Finance costs mEEH 8 (957) (970)
Profit (loss) before tax BRESAER (EE) 1,667 (17,768)
Income tax expense Frigs®if = 9 (1,096) (435)
Profit (loss) and total AEERAN (FBE)R

comprehensive income ZEHBA (BX)HBE

(expense) for the year 10 571 (18,203)
Earnings (loss) per share BERUE (FER)

— basic (RMB cents) —EXR(ANEES) 13 0.07 (2.2)

— diluted (RMB cents) — 8 (ARES) 13 0.06 (2.2)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R &

At 31 December 2014 R-ZE—[jFE+—-A=+—H

2014 2013
—E-NF T
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
Jioka AREFT AREFT
Non-current Assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment TEIE KE R&E 14 8,713 3,031
Intangible assets EmAE 15 522 614
9,235 3,645
Current Assets RBEE
Inventories T8 6 410 459
Trade and other receivables JEUWE 5 & H AR 17 19,445 9,624
Loan receivable JEURE 5k 18 - -
Held for trading investments BIEEERE 19 697 769
Bank balances and cash RITHEGB MRS 20 12,217 15,233
32,769 26,085
Current Liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables FERTE 5 R H M BR K 21 12,106 8,961
Amounts due to directors JEEEFIA 22 775 903
Amount due to a shareholder JE A< A% SR 30A 23 11 11
Tax payable FE T B I8 736 344
Borrowings BE 24 7,017 5,095
20,645 15,314
Net Current Assets REBEETHE 12,124 10,771
Total assets less current liabilities ZEERB A A E 21,359 14,416
Non-current Liabilities eI I B=R
Borrowings EE 24 32,929 27,157
Net Liabilities EEFE (11,570) (12,741)
Capital and reserves EXR#EE
Share capital [N 25 8,360 8,352
Reserves 1 (19,930) (21,093)
Deficit on Shareholders’ Equity  BRER#E % B4t (11,570) (12,741)

FSOEFI128BFTH MG AU BHRRNIKLES
eR-_E—RE-A-+EMEREET.
WHTIMATREES:

The consolidated financial statements on pages 50 to 128 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
20 March 2015 and are signed on its behalf by:

HUNG YUNG LAI CUI JIAN

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
REE ER
EF EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

-

B &

REERE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ—=—ZF—F+ - =+—HIFFZF

Share
Share Share Statutory Translation options  Accumulated
capital premium reserves reserve reserve losses Total
S RAEE EERE EHGEE BRERE i EE CH
RIMB000 RIMB 000 RIMB000 RIMB 000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ANEEFT  AREFT  AREfr  AEEFr  AREFr AREFr AEETr
(Note a) (Note b)
(Hida) (Hisb)
At 1 January 2013 RZE-=%5-f-AH 8,132 151,770 3,613 5217 38,882 (206,880) 734
Loss and total comprehensive ~ AFEFBERZERY
expense for the year a% - - - - - (18,203) (18,203)
Exercise of share options RERTEERE 220 3373 - - (1,117) - 2,476
Lapse of share options TEERNERE - - - - (9,915) 9,915 -
Recognition of equity-settled ~ BRRELENRHL B
share-based payments EREFH - - - - 2,252 - 2,252
At 31 December 2013 RZB-=%
+-A=1+-H 8,352 155,143 3,613 5217 30,102 (215,168) (12,741)
Profit and total comprehensive ~ REEEFIRZERA
income for the year &3 - - - - - 571 571
Exercise of share options TEEAR ERE 8 ) - - (42) - 8
Lapse of share options REERM ERE - - - - (328) 328 -
Recognition of equity-settled  BERBELE N R B
share-based payments AWM - - - - 592 - 592
At 31 December 2014 RoZ-IF
+-A=t+-H 8,360 155,185 3,613 5217 30,324 (214,269) (11,570)
Notes: Mzt -
(@) Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda ("Companies Act”), share (a) REERE—HAN—FEQEE(TREDE])  BPDHE

premium is distributable to shareholders, subject to the condition that the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
share premium and capital reserve if (i) it is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due, or (ii) the realisable value of
its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital account.

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for foreign investment
enterprises in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), the Company’s
PRC subsidiaries are required to maintain two statutory reserves, being an
enterprise expansion fund and a statutory surplus reserve fund which are
non-distributable. Appropriations to such reserves are made out of net
profit after taxation reported in the statutory financial statements of the
PRC subsidiaries while the amounts and allocation basis are decided by
their respective boards of directors annually. The statutory surplus reserve
fund can be used to make up their prior year losses, if any, and can be
applied in conversion into capital by means of capitalisation issue. The
enterprise expansion fund is used for expanding the capital base of the PRC
subsidiaries by means of capitalisation issue.

AR TR SR AT B )R E B 2R
B ADRTEMMENERE RMEEEZATES
BERIREBEREERITRARZ A BARTF
TEEREIRM BB E ARG G ERERERELD
i

REPEARKME ([FEIIHRECEZBRDE
BRIEERARE  ARBZHEM B AR ARLMIA
PR DR ZETE R B RBERES ROAT BB
o NI EZLFE 2 BRDM A BNE R BTEEH
BHRCHRBRRAFNDEN MERER D RELERA
HEXANEFGTFRT  ATASRMEEIBERRE
F—FE2EBER(ME)  FAEBENCETERLS
ER-PRBERESDEZENCRITHERDENE
RAZERERE-
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

nv—_ﬁ | Iﬁ:ﬁ/)lbi '%E

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE—ZF

—ESZA=F—HILFE

2014 2013
—E-IF —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEY
Profit (loss) before tax BRBLATR A (EHE) 1,667 (17,768)
Adjustments for: PR
Finance costs BmEER 957 970
Interest income MEWA (20) (15)
Depreciation of property, THE BEREEITE
plant and equipment 1,111 1,070
Amortisation of intangible assets & B B iH 92 -
Loss on disposal of property, HETBE BEREEBSE
plant and equipment 27 511
Impairment loss recognised on FEWE 5 R BB EE R
trade receivables 1,419 4,040
Recovery of trade receivables JEWE 5 R FURE & B
previously impaired (415) (2,888)
Reversal of impairment loss BEERFERESE
recognised on inventories (62) (358)
Impairment loss recognised on FEREEE
inventories - 53
Equity-settled share-based REGEURNAERCRAXZ
payment expenses 592 2,252
Loss (gain) arising on change in FIEEEREZAREZY
fair value on financial assets EE (fas)
classified as held for trading 88 (541)
Operating cash flows before EEEABBHAZRERER
movements in working capital 5,456 (12,674)
Decrease in inventories FERL 111 263
(Increase) decrease in trade and JEUE B M H A BRFR (3G 0) Rk >
other receivables (10,825) 7,171
(Increase) decrease in held FIEEBEIRE () kD
for trading investments (16) 432
Increase in trade and other payables & E 5 & H b BR 78 i1 3,145 25
Cash used in operations REMARS (2,129) (4,783)
Income tax paid EFTEH (704) (91)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING RETHTAZREFHE
ACTIVITIES (2,833) (4,874)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

MERETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z - ZE—[/1F+—-A=+—HIFFZ

2014 2013
—E-IF —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AREFT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZEH
Purchase of property, BETHE BEIHEE
plant and equipment (6,864) (60)
Proceeds from disposal of HETBE  BE M&H
property, plant and equipment Fr 153018 44 408
Interest received 2 U F B 20 15
Purchase of intangible assets BEERTLAEE - (614)
Repayment of loan receivable HERWER - 1,605
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM REEH (FA)B2REFHE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (6,800) 1,354
FINANCING ACTIVITIES METH
Proceeds from borrowings BEMEHIA 7,423 4,975
Proceeds from bank borrowing RITIEE B NIA 3,100 -
Proceeds from exercise of T REMG A
share options 8 2,476
Repayment of borrowings BEBE (2,607) (7.146)
Interest paid EENEESS (957) (970)
Repayment of bank borrowing BERTEE (222) -
(Repayment to) advance from (BR)EFREHEZBR
a director (128) 271
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) METHFE(MARSFESR
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 6,617 (394)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND RERAEEEYZ
CASH EQUIVALENTS PEAODE R (3,016) (3,914)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS SFHIZHRE2RELEEY
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 15,233 19,147
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZAER
AT END OF THE YEAR BEEEY
represented by: Al
Bank balances and cash WITHEBR LIRS 12,217 15,233
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e mARME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ=—F—/F+=-H=+—HIFFZF

GENERAL

Sing Lee Software (Group) Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with
limited liability and its shares are listed on The Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. The address of its registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
section headed “Corporate Information” in the annual
report. Its immediate holding company is Goldcorp
Industrial Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands. Its ultimate controlling party is Mr. Hung
Yung Lai, who is also the Chairman and an executive
director of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) are development and sales of
software products, sales of related hardware products and
provision of software-related technical support services.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note
30.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis. The Group’s total liabilities
exceeded its total assets by approximately RMB11,570,000
as at 31 December 2014. In preparing the consolidated
financial statements, the directors of the Company have
reviewed the Group's financial and liquidity position, and
taken into consideration the following factors:

e ongoing financial support from a director, who is also
the substantial shareholder of the Company, for a
period of twelve months from the date of approving
the consolidated financial statements by the directors;

e  cost control measures; and

e possible additional external funding.

—REE

FREE(ER)BROEBER2E (AR
A EEREAMKIA—HEREER
REERONRBEABEXHMBERRAF
BIER Em o ARRIEMPERERETEHE
BN FR [ ARIER] —HRE-HE
B A 5] A Goldcorp Industrial Limited:
ZARRNABRZHSTMA T - &&E
HwHRRERREEE (KRR ERENITE
)

RERBRERAARE (TARE]) 25
MARBDARAREWNBRAB 2HER
ﬁé}o

AR REWBAR (HBEIAEE])E
DRERHELRAZRIEE HEHBRE
HEGDREREFHEBENTSERESE
BoARAWNBRBZEBEBHNEAE
B R R MI5E30 ©

RHRESUBHRR2EE

FEMBRROCEFELEELERH X
SERE—_T--NF+_A=1t—HLF
EHRRFSzZAAEBREEEENARYE
11,570,0007T ° B4R & M AR - A
RAEFCEHNAKENMBERADES
MR E BT I A E

s HMEFHESAVBHmRERET
BERAME ES—NEETEAQA
ZEBBRROFEM G H

o RANIEBIEM K

o  HBEEISEEINIRESR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ=—ZF—/F+=-A=+—HIFFZF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 2. REGEMBERER2EE (£)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

The directors of the Company believe that, taking into RAREFHEE KERELMERE K&
account the above factors, the Group will be able to meet 15 75 82 0 P AT R 2R A B s A R B HR A
in full its financial obligations as and when they fall due BEXEFIE At ZaBHRETIER
for the foreseeable future, and accordingly, have prepared FECEAERR -

the consolidated financial statements on a going concern

basis.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. BRI REERTBR I HREE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs")

Amendments to IFRSs and the new Interpretation that
are mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied for the first time in the current
year the following amendments to IFRSs and a new
Interpretation.

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and International
Accounting Standard (“IAS”) 27 (“IAS 27”) Investment
Entities

The Group has applied the amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS
12 and IAS 27 Investment Entities for the first time in
the current year. The amendments to IFRS 10 define an
investment entity and require a reporting entity that meets
the definition of an investment entity not to consolidate
its subsidiaries but instead to measure its subsidiaries at
fair value through profit or loss in its consolidated and
separate financial statements.

To qualify as an investment entity, a reporting entity is
required to:

e obtain funds from one or more investors for
the purpose of providing them with investment
management services;

. commit to its investor(s) that its business purpose
is to invest funds solely for returns from capital
appreciation, investment income, or both; and

e measure and evaluate performance of substantially all
of its investments on a fair value basis.

El

REERFERNREE A BREEN 25
AAKRHRE

ARG B P AR TS B R IE R DA T B R B 7 R
EEE AR SR

BB BT 78R & 2E B 1055 - BB B 7% 3R &
ERIF1I2HEREEEERFE275% [RE
B ZEETK

AEERAFEERERBERM GRS E
AIZE105%  BIRR BT 5 3R 5 2 R 51257 K B
KRBT ERE 2R [REBR | ZBFI K-
PR B 7% 3R 5 2 B B 1058 2 B 7T RS IR
BERBZEER URENAZTENER
BIEBEMBARGA AR MAR
REGEMBRR YREKEE RBIY
BHRRAWERER AfKRe

5

AN THENERER T ARAREE

e
HEZ -

s M RBATHREERHKREETER
B UREER:

e MREREFAGELEENE/KRER
B NERBEAREER FKEK
sEREE R &

o RARBEEERFHABIKREZR
o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
VRPN

IaN

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ=—ZF—/F+=-H=+—HIFFZF

= B 5 3R AR MY A

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("“IFRSs") (Cont’d)

Amendments to IFRSs and the new Interpretation that
are mandatorily effective for the current year (Cont’d)

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27
Investment Entities (Cont’d)

Consequential amendments have been made to IFRS 12
and IAS 27 to introduce new disclosure requirements for
investment entities.

As the Company is not an investment entity (assessed
based on the criteria set out in IFRS 10 as at 1 January
2014), the application of the amendments has had no
impact on the disclosures or the amounts recognised in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities

The Group has applied the amendments to IAS 32
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities for
the first time in the current year. The amendments to
IAS 32 clarify the requirements relating to the offset of
financial assets and financial liabilities. Specifically, the
amendments clarify the meaning of ‘currently has a legally
enforceable right of set-off’ and ‘simultaneous realisation
and settlement’.

The amendments have been applied retrospectively. As
the Group does not have any financial assets and financial
liabilities that qualify for offset, the application of the
amendments has had no impact on the disclosures or
on the amounts recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

FE R AT I AR AE BT B R B 7S R 5 2
8l (&)

REERFERNRBEABREERN 2B
AARFETRE (&)

B B &R E 105 - BB B #H &
ERFE125 RERE T ERE275 [ RE
B 2% (&)

BB 75 4R 25 B 1 258 B B
BRI E AL BT MABAE B
FREER-

HRARBLFREER (R _F N
F—A—RBERMBHREERFE105AE
AETTRHE)  MRAZFET A EAKE
RAEMBRRANKEERAXER 2SR

B E 5t BRI E325 25T K [ 1B 2
KERzHAE R/

AEERAFEEREABER S ER
FEIVRETAEEEREELERE
Bl BRI AEFAHEHEREENER
BREZRE  LRHES [REREEREAR
ERT SR B IT 2 IR | I TR 23R N A
BlZ2HE-

ERIAB BB RN - N ANE B I EAT
MEERBRENEREERERAE &
EREIAHAREGA P HEHRRANE
BERMBRAZLEBRLEZE-
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("“IFRSs") (Cont’d)

Amendments to IFRSs and the new Interpretation that
are mandatorily effective for the current year (Cont’d)

Amendments to IAS 36 Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

The Group has applied the amendments to IAS 36
Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets
for the first time in the current year. The amendments to
IAS 36 remove the requirement to disclose the recoverable
amount of a cash-generating unit (CGU) to which goodwill
or other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives had
been allocated when there has been no impairment or
reversal of impairment of the related CGU. Furthermore,
the amendments introduce additional disclosure
requirements applicable to when the recoverable amount
of an asset or a CGU is measured at fair value less costs
of disposal. These new disclosures include the fair value
hierarchy, key assumptions and valuation techniques used
which are in line with the disclosure required by IFRS 13
Fair Value Measurements.

The application of these amendments has had no material
impact on the disclosures in the Group's consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting

The Group has applied the amendments to IAS 39
Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge
Accounting for the first time in the current year. The
amendments to IAS 39 provide relief from the requirement
to discontinue hedge accounting when a derivative
designated as a hedging instrument is novated under
certain circumstances. The amendments also clarify that
any change to the fair value of the derivative designated
as a hedging instrument arising from the novation should
be included in the assessment and measurement of hedge
effectiveness.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ=—ZF—F+ - =+—HIFFZF

& RIS AT I AR AE BT B R B S R 5 2
8l (&)

REERFERNREE A BREEN 25
AAKRHAIRE (&)

B G BRI EI6HZ G [ HEHE
EZAREZHERKE]

AEERAFEEREABER S ERE
365 ZERI AN [FFE R EE 2 I RE & &
BE| FRETAMNGRRERSELET
ZARE S EANRE - N EHBRREE
EETYERESIRERD BEXEM
EERAEAFHNEVEESREARS
EEEITT - RO BRI AN TR BER
EoE-BEESRELETHA KD
ERBRAAELRELEXNRNTER A
AEBTRINBEESRTE HENRERTE
BRERGABERMHRELENFIZR AL
B EINEERTEZAAERE  TER
&M EERTT

EAZSEIAHARENEREWBERE
BRESHRITESERTE-

BB &5t BRI E39H 2 KT X [ T4 T A
BEERYHEEZHEE]

AEERAFEEREAER G ELE
3 ZMEFT AR [(TET AR R LY P et
EZTEHE ] - ZFERTARE  MIEERY
HITAMTETAEETERATRER
B I BAEST R IEERE R EANAR
E-REEIANER REEREHRT
AEMTETARWEE M BN AR EE
B EET A PR R E -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
VRPN

IaN

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ=—F—/F+=-H=+—HIFFZF

= B 5 3R AR MY A

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("“IFRSs") (Cont’d)

Amendments to IFRSs and the new Interpretation that
are mandatorily effective for the current year (Cont’d)

Amendments to IAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting (Cont’d)

The amendments have been applied retrospectively. As the
Group does not have any derivatives that are subject to
novation, the application of these amendments has had no
impact on the disclosures or on the amounts recognised in
the Group's consolidated financial statements.

IFRIC - Int 21 Levies

The Group has applied IFRIC — Int 21 Levies for the first
time in the current year. IFRIC — Int 21 addresses the issue
as to when to recognise a liability to pay a levy imposed
by a government. The Interpretation defines a levy, and
specifies that the obligating event that gives rise to the
liability is the activity that triggers the payment of the levy,
as identified by legislation. The Interpretation provides
guidance on how different levy arrangements should
be accounted for, in particular, it clarifies that neither
economic compulsion nor the going concern basis of
financial statements preparation implies that an entity has
a present obligation to pay a levy that will be triggered by
operating in a future period.

IFRIC — Int 21 has been applied retrospectively. The
application of this Interpretation has had no material
impact on the disclosures or on the amounts recognised in
the Group's consolidated financial statements.

& FIF AT I AR AE BT B AR B S R 5 2
8l (&)

REERFERNHEBEABREERN 2B
AARFETRE (&)

BB ERE39 R ZIEET A [T T R
BEERYHEEZZEE] (E)

BREACEENER BN AKEL
EFeRENTATR WEBZFER
AHRNEELGRA BB BRRAOKESE NPT
BRAZEBEIEZE-

B EHEREEEE - B BE21
[# &)

AEERAFEERNEABERMBEHRER
BZEg R BE2R RE] -ZREE
ERRBAXNBARBE 2B BNER HR
EHENTESR WEHASIBMABHEMFE
EPIRAXNAEBEN LR - Z2 BT
FIECE 2 HF ) ABRDT IR 45 3] - WHF B
ERAEERG R REMBERRNTEE
WA REREREATA R T ERERL
EERBMIBAEE-

BB GREREZB e zREE21RE
BEVER BRAZRBUAKREGAN
BHREANBEEEFBELERZEBRLEEKX
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ—=—ZF—F+ - =+—HIFFZF

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("“IFRSs") (Cont’d)

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new

and revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective.

IFRS 9

IFRS 14

IFRS 15

Amendments to IFRS 11

Amendments to IAS 16 and
IAS 38

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 19

Amendments to IFRSs

Amendments to IFRSs

Amendments to IFRSs

Amendments to HKAS 16 and
[AS 41

Amendments to IAS 27

Amendments to IFRS 10 and

IAS 28

Amendments to IFRS 10,
I[FRS 12 and IAS 28

Financial Instruments’
Regulatory Deferral Accounts?

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations®

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation’

Disclosure Initiative®

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions?

Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2010 — 2012 Cycle®

Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2011 — 2013 Cycle?

Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2012 — 2014 Cycle®

Agriculture: Bearer Plants’

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements®

Sales or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Investment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation Exception®
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
VRPN

IaN

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ=—F—/F+=-H=+—HIFFZF

= B 5 3R R MY A

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("“IFRSs") (Cont’d)

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Cont’d)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

? Effective for first annual IFRS financial statements beginning on or
after 1 January 2016

7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
N Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014
’ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

° Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with
limited exceptions

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of theses will have a material effect on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the International Accounting
Standard Board. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values, as explained
in the accounting policies set out below. Historical cost
is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ—=—ZF—/F+ - =+—HIFFEF

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 4. FEEHHE (&)

Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements
is determined on such a basis, except for share-based
payment transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 2,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of IAS 17,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2
or value in use in IAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z - ZE—1F+—-A=+—HIFFZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 4. SETBER (&)
Basis of consolidation mEHE
The consolidated financial statements incorporate R EMBmERBERNAE R ARNEEE

the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Group. Control is achieved when the
Company:

e has power over the investee;

e is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
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and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of FR-ARmMs  FRAKBEXKEEZHWEBEARR
during the year are included in the consolidated statement ZWARZTEERAEERSEHEE B
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from Bt AGEERREMEEARER EE

the date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on

consolidation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 4.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course
of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised when goods
are delivered and titles are passed at which time all the
following conditions are satisfied:

e the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

e the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

e the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

e it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

e the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Revenue from sales of hardware and software products
is recognised when the goods are delivered and title has
passed upon customers’ acceptance.

Service income for provision of software-related technical
support is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably. Interest income from a financial asset is accrued
on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to
that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

—FESf A=+ —HILFE
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in

estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 4.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of the reporting period, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
(the translation reserve).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation,
or a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss. In addition, in relation
to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not result
in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences
are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ=—F—/F+=-H=+—HIFFZF

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 4. XEEHHE (&)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Government grants
that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future related costs
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and
state-managed retirement benefit schemes are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 4.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excluding items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Taxation (Cont’d)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they
are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 4.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of
an internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

—  the intention to complete the intangible asset and use
or sell it;

- the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

— how the intangible asset will generate probable
future economic benefits;

—  the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the intangible asset; and

- the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets the
recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the
period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible asset is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any).

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of the
two categories, including financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL") and loans and receivables.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 4. SHBX (£&)
Financial instruments (Cont’d) SRIA (&)
Financial assets (Cont’d) THEE (&)
Effective interest method BB R F0%

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments, other than those financial assets
classified as at FVTPL, of which interest income is included
in net gains or losses.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL represent financial assets held for
trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

e on initial recognition, it is a part of an identified
portfolio of financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ=—ZF—/F+=-H=+—HIFFEF

4.

= B 55 8 AR MY A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Cont’d)

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value arising from remeasurement
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
includes any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including loan receivable, trade and
other receivables and bank balances and cash) are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting
period. Financial assets are impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.

4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 4.

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

e breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables and loan receivable, assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are subsequently assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence
of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past the credit period of 120 — 180 days,
observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.
For loan receivable, impairment of the asset is assessed
individually by reference to the credit quality of individual

party.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ=—ZF—/F+=-H=+—HIFFEF

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 4. FEEHE (&)
Financial instruments (Cont’d) $®MIA(Z)
Financial assets (Cont’d) EHEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d) CHEERE (&)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables and loan receivable, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When
a trade receivable and loan receivable are considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities.Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue cost.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 4.

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont’d)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including, trade and other
payables, amounts due to directors, amount due to a
shareholder and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the assets expire or, the
financial assets are transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

)7 N =1
For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ - ZE—1F+—-A=+—HIFFZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 4. DK (&)
Financial instruments (Cont’d) ¢®IE (&)
Derecognition (Cont’d) ARILTER ()

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and

EEBRUIRRTREER REEZKR
HEES R LRERREREREME2EE
=@ AR RARN R 2 Bt E e

the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in BEMzEzZRTNERTER -
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is

recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation WMEBEHNMFTACE EERER BUBK

specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date

is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share options

JEw - &R BB IR AR TR - AR L HERR
ZeBRBELREAERECHN RENRKEZ
ERNIBEPER -

UROABERERRS
BREGEURGBERNFAXES
SLEMREBRENRE AR Z ARERE
EZBEWRBAAERGBRNAERE

SRS WA (RBAERE) REL
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reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its HFHR AEEBTHEREREE
estimates of the number of options that are expected to Z %Hﬂiﬁ%l Blmet-RNEBHAEETH
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the estimates ST B (INE) TR ER R ER - W E

during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to share options

reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of
grant, the fair value of share options granted would be
expensed fully at one time, with a corresponding increase
in equity (share options reserve).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 4.

Share-based payment transactions (Cont’d)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Cont’d)

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised
in share options reserve will be transferred to retained
earnings.

Share options granted to employees on or before 7
November 2002, or granted after 7 November 2002 and
vested before 1 January 2005

The financial impact of share options granted is not
recorded in the consolidated financial statements until
such time as the options are exercised, and no charge
is recognised in profit or loss in respect of the value of
options granted. Upon the exercise of the share options,
the resulting shares issued are recorded as additional share
capital at the nominal value of the shares, and the excess
of the exercise price per share over the nominal value of
the shares is recorded as share premium. Options which
lapse or are cancelled prior to their exercise date are
deleted from the register of outstanding options.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss,
if any. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ=—ZF—/F+=-H=+—HIFFEF

4.

= B 55 8 AR MY A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’'d)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
(Cont’d)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 4, the directors of the
Company are required to make estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ=—ZF—/F+ - =+—HIFFZF

5.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont’d)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concurring the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Allowance for doubtful debts

The Group’s management assesses the recoverability
and determines impairment of trade receivables and
loan receivable in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in note 4. Such estimation is based on the credit
history of its customers and the current market conditions.
Management reviews the debtor settlement status
periodically and reassesses the sufficiency of allowance
for doubtful debts accordingly. If the customer’s financial
position were to deteriorate, actual impairment loss or
write off would be higher than estimated.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ - ZE—1F+—-A=+—HIFFZ

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. HEWARDIBER

AEBHKLEHHIRBETAENNE S

SR FTIRE RIS AR - AR BB ITE
B (NELEREN) ERABETERD
RESTESBRAEZER THERSE
B E R FTIR IR -

The Group’s operations are organised based on the
different types of products sold and service provided.
Information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker, for
the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance is also focused on types of goods or
services delivered or provided.

Segment revenues and results PHBEEBRARES
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and REBREERZHOIMEI D HE KA K
results by operating and reportable segment: XEZ2OWMWET :
Provision of
software-
Sales of related
Sales of related technical
software hardware support
products products services Total
REHH
HEBRK HEMH ]
Em BHEM X ERB At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT ARETT ARETFZT
2014 “Z-|mE
External sales and total HOMEE REHERA
revenue - segment revenue - D EHEERA 8,525 5,557 34,826 48,908
SEGMENT RESULTS P MER 541 352 2,207 3,100
Unallocated other income RAOBEMBA 1,213
Unallocated other gains and losses AOBEEMNEREE (613)
Unallocated corporate expenses ROBEERX (1,076)
Finance costs BREER (957)
Profit before tax BRBATE A

1,667
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ=—ZF—F+ - =+—HIFFZF

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Cont’d)

Segment revenues and results (Cont’d)

6. HEWARDHMER (&)

DEHERAREE (&)

Provision of
software-
Sales of related
Sales of related technical
software hardware support
products products services Total
REREHG
HETMH HERR 18 B Rl
7 EHER SERR% =H
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT ARETT ARETT
2013 —Z-=F
External sales and total revenue HMEE RBHERA
~ segment revenue - HEHHEERA 4,166 2,819 26,379 33,364
SEGMENT RESULTS PHEE (2,038) (1,379) (12,904) (16,321)
Unallocated other expenses ROBEEMKA (147)
Unallocated other gains and losses AOEEMNEREE 1,191
Unallocated corporate expenses AOEEERY (1,521)
Finance costs REER (970)
Loss before tax BREAIEE (17,768)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies as described
in note 4. Segment results represents the profit (loss)
from each segment without allocation of directors’
remuneration, finance costs, unallocated other expenses
and other gains and losses. This is the measure reported
to the chief operating decision maker for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance assessment. No
segment information on assets and liabilities is presented
as such information is not regularly reported to the chief
operating decision maker for the purpose of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

LIED B2 BT BUR B AR 2 AN &
EestBEAR - o EE M (ER) FHEYL
BEORESTH BEER  KOBEHEAMHA
SAREMKEMER TSR IER
RERBAEERRAZREN 2 EE (F
PEREREFMERERZ BANEERA
182 #B BRI IE T A7) 48 28 S8R B [E ]
EDEEREFBRRBENER Bt
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ=—ZF—/F+=-H=+—HIFFEF

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

6. HEWARDHMER (&)

(Cont’d)
Other segment information Hith o WE R
Provision of
software-
Sales of related
Sales of related technical
software hardware support
products products services Total
Ritwy
HERH HENRE k3
Em BHER X ERH &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANEEFTT AREFT AREFT ARETFT
2014 ZB-WF
Amounts included in the measure of BERFED T RF 2
segment profit: HIE:
Depreciation of property, THE BELRENE
plant and equipment 194 126 791 1,111
Amortisation of intangible assets mREEEH 16 1" 65 92
Impairment loss recognised EWE SR EE
on trade receivables 248 161 1,010 1,419
Loss on disposal of property, HETSE BE R
plant and equipment FZRER 5 3 19 27
Recovery of trade receivables JEWE 5 R FUR E R
previously impaired (73) (47) (295) (415)
Share-based payment expenses DR BEBRNFAZ
(excluding directors) (TaEEE) 89 58 365 512
2013 —T-=%
Amounts included in the measure of BERFENLBEL
segment loss: TIE:
Depreciation of property, THE BELRENE
plant and equipment 134 90 846 1,070
Impairment loss recognised FEWE SR E
on trade receivables 505 341 3,194 4,040
Loss on disposal of property, HETHE BEREH
plant and equipment B 64 43 404 511
Recovery of trade receivables JENE 5 AR SR E R
previously impaired (360) (244) (2,284) (2,888)
Share-based payment expenses R AEBRNHRAX
(excluding directors) (TREEE) 241 163 1,528 1,932
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z - ZE—[/1F+—-A=+—HIFFZ

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. SHEWARDIBER (£)
(Cont’d)
Revenue from major products and services: RETEEMRBRHZHEHERA:
2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AREFTT ARETT

Software products BH4EM
POS-MIS V2.0 POS-MIS V2.0 7,619 3,922
Sing Lee payment management AT RER Z451.0
system 1.0 906 244
8,525 4,166
Hardware products B Em
Automatic Terminal Machine EEES Rt 1,800 -
Automatic Pay Machine BB B 1,285 293
Network Control Device ER R 824 -
SP30 SP30 398 456
MIS system front-end equipment MISE SR B :& 5 191 221
Server AR 7% 25 179 184
Posiflex cashdrawer TN IR - 1,069
Computer £ 20 133
Others Hity 860 463
5,557 2,819
Provision of software-related REESHHBEIN
technical support services Y ERE
Development kg 10,400 5,352
Maintenance & 24,426 21,027
34,826 26,379
48,908 33,364
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ=—ZF—F+=-H=+—HIFFZF

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. HEWARDHER (&)
(Cont’d)
Geographical information i & &R
The Group's revenue from external customers is all REBRBINREF ZHEBABARE
generated from customers located in the PRC. REH R o
All non-current assets of the Group are located in the PRC NEEFMBERDEEREEMTHE S
by location of assets. BRLAFREIREA -
Information about major customers FEEFEHR
There was no revenue from a single customer contributing REBEWEKRE @R EF 2 HEWATR
over 10% of the total sales of the Group. fEiEAAIHE10% °
7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7. HitWmRkEE
2014 2013
—2-mF —T=F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AREFTT AEETT

(Loss) gain arising on change BIEEBEREAZAAREE

in fair value on financial assets &) (E18) Wz

classified as held for trading (88) 541
Exchange (loss) gain FEH (EE) s (525) 650

(613) 1,191
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ=—ZF—F+ - =+—HIFFZF

8.

FINANCE COSTS

8. WMEEHN

2014 2013
—F-mF —F—=
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FT AREFT
Interest on bank borrowing wholly HARTIFANZEEEZ
repayable within five years RITEE TR 94 -
Interest on loans from a director not BEARAFRNEZHEEZ
wholly repayable within five years BERERZHE 863 970
957 970
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FIBHAX
2014 2013
—E-mEF —ET-=%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AR F T
PRC enterprise income tax (“EIT") PR ERTER
(M BHR])
— Current year —REE 1,076 415
— Underprovision in prior year - BEFEREETR 20 20
1,096 435

Hangzhou Singlee Technology Company Limited (“Singlee
Technology”), a subsidiary of the Company, was
established in Hangzhou, PRC, with statutory tax rate of
25%. Singlee Technology is regarded as a High and New
Technology Enterprise defined by Zhejiang Finance Bureau,
Administrator of Local Taxation of Zhejiang Municipality
and Zhejiang Municipal office of the State Administration
of Taxation and is therefore entitled to 15% preferential
tax rate from PRC EIT for three years starting from 2013.
Accordingly, the tax rate for Singlee Technology is 15% for
the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

MmN AR RERAR ([FHARE]) A
ARABRFPBEMIMKLZHE QR Ak
25% % TE Bt R 4N L o 7 F B0 8T )T B R
B AImi AR BITRE RERES R
BINIEAMBRNRAZERE AT EME
¥ WAZTE—=-FRIT=-FHEESH
BEEAMSHISRERME KL #E=
E-NERZE-—=F+-A=+—8H1
FEFFRZZHEL/I5% °
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ=—ZF—/F+=-H=+—HIFFEF

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont’d)

According to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, the
applicable tax rate of Hangzhou Singlee Software
Company Limited (“Singlee Software”), Singlee Software
(Zhuhai) Company Limited (“Singlee Zhuhai”), Beijing
Singlee Yin Tong Information Technology Co., Ltd.
("Beijing Singlee”) and Xin Yintong Technology Co., Ltd.
("Xin YinTong”) is 25% for the years ended 31 December
2014 and 2013.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as
the Group had no estimated assessable profits arising from
Hong Kong during the year ended 31 December 2014 and
2013.

The tax charge for the year is reconciled to the profit (loss)
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss

Friesim < (&)

BEFBRCEMEHE HE-_T—NF
M _E-—ZF+-_A=+—HILFE N
MERFEEBR AR ([FAE]) 57
B (HRB)BERAA (TFHAHKE]) -4t
REARBEESRMBER LA (TR
MDD RFEBEEEGRAR ([FRA])
LR EH25% o

HRAEERBE-_T—OFER_T—=
Ft-A=tHALFEYERBBEL
st R BUs M) i B BB IS TAE
B -

AEEHEXHEGE R MEMEEE
mARZBRBANGEN (B1R) 2 HERIT

and other comprehensive income as follows:

2014 2013
—E-IF —T—=
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFT AREBFT
Profit (loss) before tax BRERDE A (E58) 1,667 (17,768)
Tax charge at enterprise income tax rate A ZEMEMHTEI5%
at 15% (2013: 15%) (Note) —E-=%F:15%)
AEZBMES S (FiE) 250 (2,665)
Tax effect of income not taxable PR RBHA 2
for tax purpose M e (599) (1,102)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AR 2
for tax purpose ki34 356 1,131
Effect of different tax rates of EEERENE TR ZE
group entities (350) (1,836)
Underprovision of tax in prior year MEFERERETRE 20 20
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERRIBEEEZ
MisE & 1,419 4,887
Tax charge for the year REFRIEXH 1,096 435
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9.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont’d)

Note. Applicable income tax rate of 15% (2013: 15%) represents the
relevant income tax rate of Singlee Technology, the subsidiary of the
Company which generates majority of the Group's assessable profit.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately RMB74,134,000 (2013:
RMB64,674,000), available for offset against future profits
and deductible temporary differences of RMB4,233,000
(2013: RMB4,092,000) in relation to the impairment
loss on intangible assets, inventories written off, trade
receivables written off and impairment recognised on
trade receivables. The unused tax losses of approximately
RMB20,509,000 (2013: RMB20,509,000) would be
expired in 2016, approximately RMB14,908,000 (2013:
RMB14,908,000) would be expired in 2017, approximately
RMB17,517,000 (2013: RMB17,517,000) would be expired
in 2018 and the remaining amount of approximately
RMB719,000 (2013: Nil) would be expired in 2019. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to
the unused tax losses and the deductible temporary
differences as it is not probable that taxable profits will
be available against which the unused tax losses and the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Friesim (&)

Biat: BARMEHEBRIS% (ZT—=4:15% )X
ARIMBARFHB R ZABEAEHEE  ZA
RAIANEEEA KNI D ERELEF -

RWERAR NEBENREARBEELD
BARETA134,0000 (ZF—=F: AR
#64,674,0007T ) - A] FAVEH 85 R 20 7 &
AR E B R A AR % 4,233,0000T (=
T—=F: AR¥4,092,0000T) @S
HHEFEENREBE CHEFE.
EisEE W E 5 R R B 5 e UR 5
RZBEEBEEEB RBRAIRBEELD
AR #20,509,000c (ZFE—=F: AR
#20,509,00070 ) iR =T — /RN FEHH - M
#IARM14,908,0007T (ZF—=F : AR
#514,908,0007T) R =ZZE—+EFEH
AR®17,517,000L (ZE—=F: AR
#17,517,00070 ) R = — \FHH - LA
FHTHARET19,000T (ZFE— =4
E)VBR T —NFHE - AR EEETEE
A E A A A AER AR B A 2 S E e
RAl R E R E5E  WASBIW A E @
RE)FA S E 18 K AT HR B = B R R
EFIBEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ=—ZF—F+=-H=+—HIFFZF

10.

PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

Profit (loss) for the year has been arrived at after charging

10. "EEEA (FE)

AERaHN (B8R 2k & (FEA) T

and (crediting) the following items: 15 :
2014 2013
—E-mEF —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARE T AREFT
Salaries, wages and other staff benefits #H& - TEREME TEF 20,222 17,022
Retirement benefits scheme contribution iR {48 F 51 2 4L 7% 1,003 949
Equity-settled share-based payment IREEEARGD A
expenses AN R 592 2,252
Total staff costs (Note) B I A% (Iit) 21,817 20,223
Depreciation of property, TehE BMERRBINE
plant and equipment 1,111 1,070
Amortisation of intangible assets | EEHH 92 -
Auditor’s remuneration ZERD BN &
478 446
Operating lease rentals BHEERAEN 2
in respect of rented premises KEHEEMES 2,723 3,442
Impairment loss recognised FEWE 5 ERFREE R
on trade receivables 1,419 4,040
Recovery of trade receivables FEUE 5 R BB E R D
previously impaired (415) (2,888)
Reversal of impairment loss BOoC®RFTERE
recognised on inventories B8 (GTABERAE)
(included in cost of sales) (62) (358)
Cost of inventories recognised WRAEMIZZ
as an expense BFERAE 3,237 2,332
Loss on disposal of property, HETBE  BE M&#H
plant and equipment B8 27 511
Impairment loss recognised FEREEE
on inventories - 53
Interest income FEWA (20) (15)
Government grants K I %8 B
— subsidy related to products —E L (120) (13)
— value-added tax refunds —IBE R (998) (326)

Note. Directors’ emoluments are included in the above staff costs.

it BEMECOFALME TRA-
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11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 1. E5ME
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 6 (2013: BENRENFARE( ZE—Z=ZF:%8)
6) directors were as follows: EEZAZHMELT
2014
—E-mF
Retirement Equity-settled
benefits share-based
scheme payment
Fees Salaries contributions expenses Total
RELEH
RIKEF NRGRER
ne e AR DE:E3 mst
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT AREFT AREFT ARKETFT
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Hung Yung Lai ARRB LA - 76 4 - 80
Mr. Cui Jian EREE - 407 4 - an
Mr. Hung Ying AR - 274 2 80 356
Independent non-executive BYFHTEE
directors
Mr. Pao Ping Wing BREEE 76 - - - 76
Mr. Tam Kwok Hing HEE K& 76 - - - 76
Mr. Lo King Man EEX%EAE 76 - - - 76
228 757 10 80 1,075
2013
—E-=%
Retirement Equity-settled
benefits share-based
scheme payment
Fees Salaries contributions expenses Total
RS
RIKEH DA A
ik e SRRt REAL @it
RMB 00 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB 000
AREFIT AEEFT ARKEFT AREFT AREFT
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Hung Yung Lai ARRB LA - 76 4 - 80
Mr. Cui Jian ERRA - 407 22 - 429
Mr. Hung Ying e - 460 4 317 781
Independent non-executive BIFHTEE
directors
Mr. Pao Ping Wing HIRREE 76 - - 1 77
Mr. Tam Kwok Hing HEELE 76 - - 1 77
Mr. Lo King Man EEXEE 76 - - 1 77

228 943 30 320 1,521
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE—ZF

11. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d)

During the year ended 31

December 2014,

—FES A=+ —HILFE

11.

the

management of the Company is in the process of re-
appointment of the Chief Executive of the Company and
therefore, there is no emolument for the Chief Executive

to be disclosed.

During the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, no
remuneration was paid by the Group to the directors as

an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. None of the directors has
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration for the year

ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

12. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

12.

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals
included two (2013: two) executive directors of the
Company, whose emoluments are included in the
disclosures above. The emoluments of the remaining three

individuals (2013: three) were as follows:

EEME (F)

HE-_T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE"
AN/N| E.EEFEEE%*EZK’ATGEW!
PR W ETRAE 2 B2 AT
55 o

HE-_Z—NWUER-_ZT—=F+"A=+—
BIEFE- $;‘%lﬂtﬁiﬁﬂﬁ-ﬁ§$§iﬁ$ﬁ
P 1 75 IR S B AN A S (B 38 A R 5% [ B
ZHMSIERERERB 2HE-MES
EMBRIAEHRBE-_FT TR =-Z
—ZF+ZA=+—BIEFE 2

RBREM<

AEEREARSHFALTEEMA(ZF
—ZHF WMB)ARBANTES HFHC
FALXBENERR -BRTI=RAL (=
T-=ZF:ZR)ZHFMET:

2014 2013

—E-WF —T-=%

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TFTT AREFT

Salaries and other benefits FekEMETR 1,012 1,056
Contribution to retirement benefits RRAE N ET Bl 50

schemes 122 117

Equity-settled share-based payment A& 4 48 B LA 1 =
expenses ERAHRALZ 178 592
1,312 1,765

Their emoluments were individually within the

HK$1,000,000 band.

During the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, no
remuneration was paid by the Group to the five highest
paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

S E 5 < B 5 1,000,000% 7T 2 #
B A e

BHE_Z—OFE_FT—=F+2AH
:+fH¢¢F'$%lmﬁﬁ£%?%
FATZREAESFMERRSI EIMARE
IXMA$%l%ZﬁMI¢ﬁE%£%
T fHIE .
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13. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings (loss) per
share attributable to the owners of the Company is based
on the following data:

13. BRI ZE (F5E)

ARBFEEANEESRERNRE TG WS
(B8 DR T BB E

2014 2013
—E-F —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARETFT
Profit (loss) for the year attributable AKAREE ANBEFE
to owners of the Company BRARR#EEHIE
for the purposes of basic and AR FRE (F18)
diluted loss per share 571 (18,203)
2014 2013
—E-NF —T—=
‘000 ‘000
FR Fhg
Number of shares BRHEA
Weighted average number of ordinary FAEsTE SRR AR K #E
shares for the purposes of basic and W (BE) 2 E@Ek
diluted earnings (loss) per share hniEF9 8 839,982 816,501
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares 358 /% 7 & 3@ I B8 IR 4
Share options oA 42,860 -
882,842 816,501

The computation of diluted loss per share for the year
ended 31 December 2013 did not assume the exercise of
the Company’s outstanding share options as they have an
anti-dilutive effect on the loss per share calculation.

HE-_ZT—=F+-_A=1+—HILFES
BEEBE A ELEBERITERNRA M
RITEHNBERE RESEREYESRE
Bt EAEREETE -
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. 7 BE -BERRZE

Computer and Other
Leasehold related office Motor
Building  Improvements equipment equipment vehicles Total
g EER 1t
BT NELE HERE RAZRE ] &t
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
NEKFT NEEFTL NEEFT NEBFT ANEHFT NEEFT
cosT RA
At 1 January 2013 RZZ-Z#-f-A - 3,123 6,902 1,964 1,574 13,563
Additions £ - - 49 - 1 60
Reclassification ENE - - (1,218) (184) - (1,402)
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=§+ZA=1-H - 3,123 5,733 1,780 1,585 12,221
Additions & 6,238 419 182 - 25 6,864
Disposals HE - - (310) (187) (444) (941)
At 31 December 2014 RZE-EF+ZA=1-H 6,238 3,542 5,605 1,593 1,166 18,144
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2013 RZE-=F—f—H - 2,538 3,852 1,537 676 8,603
Provided for the year RERE - 172 642 128 128 1,070
Reclassification ENE - - (403) (80) - (483)
At 31 December 2013 RZF-mE+-A=1-H - 2,710 4,091 1,585 804 9,190
Provided for the year RERE 122 332 418 144 95 1,111
Eliminated on disposals R ERE#E - - (307) (136) (427) (870)
At 31 December 2014 WZE-REF-A=+—H 122 3,082 4202 1,593 472 9,431
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2014 RZE-ME+-A=1-A 6,116 500 1,403 - 694 8,713
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=ZF+ZA=1-H - 413 1,642 195 781 3,031

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment over their estimated
useful lives and after taking into account their estimated
residual value ranging from 5% to 10%, using straight-
line method, at the following rates per annum:

WEREBEENTHE BERLEEBZ
st A {E A E R A B AR SR IR T 51 & R
HERA  WEF REGFFBEER (N T
5%ZE10% ) :

Building Over 20 years BF 20%F
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the HEWEEE T & F Bl gk 55F

term of lease or 5 years (B & AY%E)
Computer and related equipment 20% - 30% BB 20%E30%
Other office equipment 20% N 20%
Motor vehicles 10% — 20% Bl 10%%£20%
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d) 14. TBIE -ERHE (&)

The building is situated on leasehold land in the PRC and ZEFURPBEAM  BRTEHFE -
held under medium-term lease.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group has not obtained the HE-_FT—WNF+=-_A=+—H £5H
building ownership certificate for its building with carrying MABSEFCEEERECENREE
amount of RMB6,116,000 (2013: nil). The directors of the ABAR®E6,116,0000 2 —=F:F) o K
Company expect the building ownership certificate will be AAEEHEN FEERELEHE_T
obtained in 2015. —hFEB-

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15. B &=

Development

costs
MEEH
RMB’000
AR For
CoST R
At 1 January 2013 N_E—=F—H—H 12,889
Additions H#n 614
At 31 December 2013 and 2014 RZE—Z=ZFR-_ZF—NF
+=-—A=+—H 13,503
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT B KR E
At 1 January 2013 and RZE—=%—H—H"

31 December 2013 —ET—=%+_-"HA=+—H 12,889
Amortisation for the year PINCS b 92
At 31 December 2014 RZE—WF+—A=+—H 12,981
CARRYING VALUES RHEE
At 31 December 2014 N _E—-NF+_-_A=+—H 522

At 31 December 2013 R—ZE—=F+=-_HA=+—H 614
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ=—ZF—/F+=-H=+—HIFFZF

16.

17.

INVENTORIES 16. B &
2014 2013
—E-mF —F—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR For
Finished goods BIK o 410 459
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17. BWWE 5 K H iR X
2014 2013
—E-EF —F—=
RMB’000 RMB 000
AREFT ANREFor
Trade receivables JEUE FER 3K 24,763 14,437
Less: allowance for doubtful debts A RERE R (8.432) (7,428)
16,331 7,009
Other receivables H {th e UG BR 31 3,114 2,615
19,445 9,624

Other receivables mainly include advance to staff for daily
operation, rental and utility deposits and others.

Customers are generally granted with credit period
ranging from 120 — 180 days. The Group may, on a
case by case basis and after evaluation of the business
relationship and creditworthiness, extend the credit period
upon customer’s request. Before accepting any new
customer, the Group conducts investigation or research on
the creditworthiness of the new customer and assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits
by customer.

HMBEEERETERRETHAREEZR
R HERAAEXRZE REM-

BTEPZEEH KRN F1202180K T
F o AN Rl IR R BB AP S R A B R
EER BEPERLERESH -HEEMRIE
A#EFH AREERAEXMEHER
ZEERFHEBEEFP 2 EEERMETE

BEPZIERBEE-

4( Annual Report 2014 —Z—FFf

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED $i#/% 4 (%£8) BHER AR ) 95




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR
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17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d) 17. BB S R EMmERR (&)

AT TS HREWE SRR (MR EE
BINERBHRE D ZRIR DT

The following is an aged analysis based on invoice date
of trade receivables net of allowances at the end of the
reporting period:

2014 2013

—E—mF —E—=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARETFT

0 - 120 days 0Z 120K 14,928 5,939
121 — 180 days 1212180k 593 757
181 - 360 days 181E360K 810 313
16,331 7,009

BIERAEBREKE ZERFRNAAFER
BEHARKS10,000L (ZE—=F: AR
#5313,00070) < EW AR 5K - RS BARE
A MASENEAREBERE A&
IRzl 8 S R ma G B v

Included in the Group’s trade receivables are debtors
with the aggregate carrying amount of approximately
RMB810,000 (2013: RMB313,000) which have been past
due as at the end of the reporting period for which the
Group has not provided for impairment losses. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

EEMERREZEBEE SRR Rk D

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not

impaired: Mo
2014 2013
—E-DNEF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR FT AREFT
Overdue: gl
Less than 1 year DRE 810 313

BRTARBHPIARBELRRESERTE
BRREFEERFZEA MM AFRRT

from state-owned and local commercial banks with good 2 FEWER BN -

The remaining trade receivables which are neither past
due nor impaired mainly comprise the receivables due

reputation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ=—F—/F+=-H=+—HIFFZF

17.

18.

B % R R M R

o

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d) 17. EIWE S REMRR (&)
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts REREES
2014 2013
—E—mE —E—=%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AR For
1 January —H—H 7,428 6,276
Impairment losses recognised R EWKIE
on receivables VRI=N R 1,419 4,040
Impairment losses reversed B EREEE (415) (2,888)
31 December +—-—A=+—8H 8,432 7,428

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are
individually impaired trade receivables with an aggregate
balance of approximately RMB8,432,000 (2013:
RMB7,428,000) of which the debtors were in financial
difficulties.

Certain of the Group’s trade and other receivables of
approximately RMB49,000 (2013: RMB200,000) were
denominated in US$, foreign currencies of respective
group entities.

REBELECEBECEREZERER
WREH AR ¥8,432,0000T (—E—=4F:
AR#7,428,00070) ' BEEH A LR
R £ -

AEBETREUESMNEMERERHDARE
49,0007t ( =F— =4 : AR#200,0007T)
IR EREEERE 2 INEETTHE-

LOAN RECEIVABLE 18. EWNE X
2014 2013
—E2-mF —EF-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREFr
Fixed-rate loan receivable JEWTE BB 2,040 2,040
Less: allowance on loan receivable B R E SRR (2,040) (2,040)

The loan receivable represents a loan of HK$5,000,000
(equivalent to RMB4,080,000) granted to Achieve Best
Investments Limited (“Achieve Best”), an independent
third party, which is unsecured and carries interest at 2%

per annum.

FEULE ZRIEH T B L % = 5 Achieve Best
Investments Limited (“Achieve Best"”)
Z B 5,000,000 T (HER AR
4,080,0007T) - BRI E R IW MK L F
FE2%5T 8 °
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18. LOAN RECEIVABLE (Cont’d)

19.

The loan was originally due on 30 November 2010 and
the Company extended the repayment date of the loan to
30 November 2011 after evaluated the potential business
development with the independent third party and
assessed its credit quality by the directors. During the year
ended 31 December 2011, the repayment date of the loan
was further extended to 30 November 2012. In view of
the fact that the loan advance had been outstanding over
a year, no settlement was received during the year 2011
and the past incidents of extending the loan repayment
date, impairment loss of HK$2,500,000 (equivalent to
RMB2,040,000) was recognised in 2012 after considering
the probable future cash flows.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the company
received a partial settlement amounted to HK$2,000,000,
equivalent to RMB1,605,000 from Achieve Best. No
settlement was received during the year ended 31
December 2014.

18. EIWER (#Z)

ZEFRIINRZ=ZE—ZEF+—A=1+HE
H mEBSEFEEBYIE=AEIEZEE
BRENREBEHEEERRZ AQA#
ERzERPEE—_T——F+— A=+
H-RBE_F——F+-_A=1+—H
LEFE BERZERBHE—TEE-F
——F+—A=tRH-AERERNKEE
MEEEBAE—F MARZE——FNRN
WEKITEMNERER MBAERER
BREBRzE0 EEEIAERRES
ML - R 2T — ZF B #382,500,0007%
7t (£ R/ AR #2,040,0007T ) B EE1E

NZE—=F - N FEF Achieve Best(&
FER 5 /8 4 ¥ /52,000,000 7T (HHE
B AR #1,605,0000) cR#EE =T — M
F+ZA=Z+—BLEFE TEKEEM
B

HELD FOR TRADING INVESTMENTS 19. FIEEBERE
2014 2013
—E—mF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARMFT ARHEF T
Investments in unlisted fund FETEESRE 697 769

The investments in the fund are denominated in US$, of
which 23% (2013: 30%) of the fund’s investments are
listed securities and liquid assets and the remaining 77%
(2013: 70%) is an unlisted security. The fair value of the
investments in the unlisted fund is estimated based on
the fund’s net asset value, representing mainly the quoted
prices of the fund'’s listed investments.

ZESZIREDNUETFE ESKRES
B23% (ZE—=F:30%) B LtmEHFL
RBEE #HBT77% (- E—=%:70%)
Al f—IBELmELF-LTESKREZ
AhERESCZEESFE NZEFRE
2 EMREZHREBIEREE MGG -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ=—F—/F+=-H=+—HIFFZF

20. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 20. RITEBRRBES

The Group’s bank balances and cash comprise bank REBBTEHEKIRESBPEFNILIE
balances which carry interest at prevailing market saving TMEERFEFNEROIER0IE(ZF
rates ranging from 0.01% to 0.35% (2013: 0.01% to —=F:0.01EZE035FE )t B ZRITH
0.35%) per annum during the year. fR o

Certain of the Group's bank balances and cash REEBEHARE200TEOARE
of approximately RMB2,000 and approximately 334,0005t (—ZT— =4 : AR¥88,0005T
RMB334,000 (2013: RMB88,000 denominated in US$ and DRIAZETTHNE R ARH1,152,0007T A7
RMB1,152,000 denominated in HK$) were denominated in THME) 2 & TIRTEHR LB T IRHEH
US$ and HK$, respectively, foreign currencies of respective SEHEB IINEETRAETLFE:.

group entities.

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21. BERNEZ R EMEER

2014 2013

—F-mF ——
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥FT AREFT
Trade payables ERTE SR 5,178 3,002
Deposits received from customers BWREFES 261 1,335
Payroll payables JE {1 B T %57 B 1,414 1,237
Other payables and accrual H b FE S BRI 5,253 3,387
12,106 8,961
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ—=—ZF—/F+ - =+—HIFFEF

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Cont’d)

The following is an aged analysis based on invoice date of
trade payables at the end of the reporting period:

21. BENESZREMIRR (&)

ATHmEMRENEZERAEEAH

Bl 2RI DT

2014 2013

—E-—NE —_EF—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FT AREFT
Within 90 days 90K AN 2,887 1,776
91 - 180 days 91E 180K 345 382
181 — 365 days 1812365K 1,134 89
366 — 730 days 366E730K 189 238
Over 731 days 731 KA E 623 517
5,178 3,002

Certain of the Group’s trade and other payables of
approximately RMB613,000 and RMB57,000 (2013:
RMB611,000 were denominated in US$ and RMB118,000
were denominated in HK$) were denominated in US$
and HKS$, respectively, the foreign currencies of respective
group entities.

22. AMOUNTS DUE TO DIRECTORS

REBETEMNE S REMEBEZIHARE
613,0007C & A R#57,0000 (= F — =
F: AR#611,0000 AETTINER ARE
118,000 T A TTIE) DRI ABEBEE

BZINEXTTRETTIIE

22. BRNESHE

2014 2013

—E-MF —E-=%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AREFor

Amounts due to directors S EEFIA 775 903

The amounts are denominated in HK$, unsecured, non-
interest bearing and repayable on demand.

ZAREABTTAHE  RERR 2R AAR

s
ZREE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ—=—ZF—/F+=-H=+—HIFFZF

23. AMOUNT DUE TO A SHAREHOLDER

24.

23. B RERFKIE

2014 2013
—F-MmF —F=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT
Amount due to a shareholder, JfE - — & P B Goldcorp
Goldcorp Industrial Limited Industrial Limited &) 18 1 11

The amount is denominated in

non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

HK$, unsecured,

ZAREABTAHE  RERR 2R RAR

. e sem
TREE-

BORROWINGS 24. {8 &
2014 2013
—F-MmF —
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®Fr AREFT
Loans from a director (Note i) EXER (K 37,068 32,252
Bank borrowing (Note i) RITE (K atii) 2,878 -
39,946 32,252
The borrowings are repayable as follows: BEAZUTHNEE:
2014 2013
—E-MF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBFr AREFT
Within one year —F K 7,017 5,095
Between one and two years —EMWE 2,093 1,252
Between two and five years e RF 11,703 4,007
More than five years HBBRAF 19,133 21,898
39,946 32,252
Less: Amount due within one year shown Jil:ZBR—FRNEEZ &5
under current liabilities (M EREEE) (7,017) (5,095)
Amount due after one year BER—FREEZSRE 32,929 27,157
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z —

24. BORROWINGS (Cont’d)

Notes:

)

(ii)

The

These loans represent unsecured loans from a director, Mr. Hung
Yung Lai, who is also a shareholder with significant influence
over the Company. As at 31 December 2014, loans with the
aggregate carrying amount of approximately RMB26,066,000 (2013:
RMB26,691,000) carried fixed interest at 3.25% per annum and
repayable in equal monthly installments to July 2031, loan amount
of approximately RMB1,712,000 (2013: RMB1,678,000) carried
fixed interest at 3.25% per annum and repayable in equal monthly
installments to December 2032, and loan amount of RMB1,090,000
(2013: RMB1,068,000) is interest-free and repayable on demand.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group borrowed
(i) new loans of RMB1,000,000 (2013: RMB4,975,000) from the
director which are unsecured, interest bearing at 3.5% per annum
and repayable within one year and the Group repaid RMB1,015,000
(2013: RMB2,160,000) of that loans during the year; (ii) new loans
of RMB1,340,000 (2013: Nil) from the director which are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable within one year; and (iii) new loans of
RMB4,060,000 (2013: Nil) from the director which are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable within 3 years from 2014 to 2017.

The Group has a new bank borrowing from a bank in the PRC with
a principal amount of RMB3,100,000 (2013: Nil) to finance the
purchase of a new office premise in Hangzhou, the PRC in June
2014. The borrowing is unsecured, interest bearing at Base Rate in
the PRC plus 15% and repayable in equal monthly installments for 7
years to June 2021.

borrowings are denominated in the functional

currency of the respective group entity.

—FESf A=+ —HILFE

2. (BB (&)

Brat -

(

D)

(ii)

1j:t 1

g HE

ZEEFERA - REFRBESE (RTAY
ARBBEAERZENZBR) 2 EERER -

R-ZZE—m&E+—A=+—A AtEEELNA
AR #26,066,0007 (ZE—=F+=-A=+—
A: ARM26,691,00070) 2 B iz F B3.25/8
AR EBASEOMERE EE T = —F+
B &8BHOARE1,712,000 (ZE—=F+=
A=+—H: AE%¥1,678, OOOE)ZE KR F
B325B:tE BB ASHEHEE BE-F

==%+=A @%&iz%/\ﬁﬁm,wo,oomﬂ:%
—=F+=ZA=+—H: AR%1,068,000L) 2
EXERE BBKREREE-

AEBEREBEE-_Z-—WNF+_A=+—AH1
FEOMEMEENEMNEEERER &8
AAREE1,000,0000 (ZE—=FAARK
4,975,0007T) " IFE35EAE BN —FRE
B OAKBERAFEEET ARK1,015000 T
(ZZE—=F A AR¥2,160,0007T) : (ii)HE il
EENMBHEERRACEEN EAARE
1,340,000 (ZE2—=FAT) AR —FANE
B RGiym Pt E SRS EmEKRe s BN
/f%ﬁ?%/\ﬁm 060 000m(_;f:¢2%i) '
ARZF(ZE—NE_T—+tF)NE

BN REEBR T —UFERAR—BEPBERT
HBEEERER x&&5AARY3,100,000
T(ZE—=ZFAT)  URFERIMNEE i
AE-HREFEPREEFNENT S 2+ et
H - ARECFN(EZTEZ—F X A)KREBARE
EoOHEE-

i

A&

m
m

\;

B
e

MIREEETE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ=—F—/F+=-H=+—HIFFZF

25.

26.

SHARE CAPITAL

25. IR

Number of shares Amount
BRHEE R
2014 2013 2014 2013
“E-mFE  —ET-=F CZE-QNF —T-=F
‘000 000 RMB000 RMB000
Fi i AR¥Fr  AREFT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SRAENOETZEER
Authorised: EIE
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—BRTZA=+-H 10,000,000 10,000,000 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BREITRER:
At 1 January n—A—H 839,730 811,840 8,352 8,132
Exercise of share options TR 1,000 27,890 8 220
At 31 December Wt+ZA=1+—H 840,730 839,730 8,360 8,352

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS
Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted on 27 August 2001 for the primary purpose of
providing incentives to directors and eligible employees,
and has been expired on 27 August 2011. Under the
Scheme, the Board of Directors of the Company may grant
options to eligible employees, including directors of the
Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in
the Company. The Scheme would be valid and effective
for a period of ten years commencing on the adoption
date and have come to its expiration. All other respects of
the provisions of the Scheme shall remain in full force and
holders of all options granted under the Scheme prior to
such expiry shall be entitled to exercise the outstanding
options pursuant to the terms of the Scheme until expiry
of the said options. As a result, a new share option
scheme which was approved on 28 February 2011 (the
“New Scheme”), take effect immediately after the expiry
of the existing Scheme. The principal terms of the New
Scheme are similar with the Scheme.

26. U AERBNARRS

RABRZREEEBRESTS

ARmlzElEE ([ZAE8]R_F
E-FNAZTEERMN TZENRE
BEENAERER YR _FT——F
NAZtERE® -REZXE AR A
ExgnmAERER (BRARA K
MEBARZER)RLBRE UARBAL
B - AT EI MM E B RER S
THEAECEEM KT EGRZ A E M
FTHEBESEEEAY RIEZEREZ
PREBRE A ARZRIEA R
At Bl 2GR BHERRITEAREITE
ZREE BEERMBREDH - Bt R
—E-—F A=+ N\ACERENE
g ([#at8])) RIRAAEEMELEE
R o Frat &z E RGN E LA BIARE M-
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ—=—ZF—F+ - =+—HIFFZF

26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS

(Cont’d)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company
(Cont’d)

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed by the
shareholders at the special general meeting of the
Company held on 28 February 2011 (the “SGM"), the
New Scheme mandate limit was refreshed so that the
Company was authorised to grant share options under
the New Scheme for subscription of up to a total of
81,184,000 shares, representing approximately 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of
the SGM.

At 31 December 2014, the number of ordinary shares in
respect of which options had been granted on 9 October
2007 (“2007 Option”), 19 January 2010 (“2010 January
Option”), 16 August 2010 (“2010 August Option”), 28
February 2011 (“2011 February Option”) and 24 June
2013 (“2013 June Option”) and remained outstanding is
142,960,000 (2013: 145,370,000), representing 17.0% of
the total ordinary shares of the Company (2013: 17.3%
of the total ordinary shares) in issue at the end of the
reporting period.

Under the Scheme and the New Scheme, the total number
of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time,
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.
The number of shares issued and to be issued in respect
of which options granted and may be granted to any
individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time,
without prior approval from the Company's shareholders.

26. MRGD BERNRRS (&)

FRRZRELEHBRESTS (F)

BEBRER -_ZT——F A=+ N\BET
ZARRBRERENAE ([REFIIAE])
@Bz ERRARR Frdl 2R ERE
EEH SARRERERENTERD
R TR & Z S 1£81,184,000/% I
AR RRRRFR NS BEE #1T
BEA#I10% ©

R-_ZT—NE+_A=+—8 B®ERER
ZZEZEF+ANB ([ ZZEZFER
#] ) ZTE—TF—A+hB ([=ZF
—ZF—-AEKRE] ) ZE-—ZTFNA
TRAB(ZE—Z=FN\ABKRE] )
—F——®-_A=-t+NB([ZF——
“AERE] ) RZE—=FA=1+HX
B(IZZE—=F"ABKR#E] )BH
BIMHRITEZERE PR EBKR
#H B /£142,960,0000 ( — & — = F:
145,370,0001% ) AR RRWMERRE
BTEBREHZ17% ( —T—=F 14
TBERAEZ17.3% ) °

RIEZETEI RS ML EEFSARE
B REY T AU HE /- AR IR L AT IR h A R Ak
BMBITORNER TREBEEARFD
BTN H910% © fisf I M ME AR 1 B ARER 5
AL WER —FRAREMALERE
HA FRENBREETEM D EITRHA
TEITOENHE T HBEAQRIM
REOEEITROMI% -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ=—F—/F+=-H=+—HIFFZF

26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS 26. LR AERNRRS (&)

(Cont’d)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company AATZRELEBRESTE (£)

(Cont’d)

Options shall be exercised in the following manner: MR A TN R T

Options granted to directors and employees on 9 R-BEELtF+ANA —E—FF—H

October 2007, 19 January 2010 and 16 August 2010 TAAR=ZFE—ZFFNA+AARTEE

RIESHERE

e 5% of the options shall become exercisable upon o S%MERBEBANRETBENEARE
6-months of the date of grant AFITE

e Additional 10% of the options shall become o BIMO%MBEREENFLBEHE A
exercisable upon the first anniversary of the date of FRATITE
grant

e Additional 35% of the options shall become o SHN35%HEAREANE H B BB
exercisable upon the second anniversary of the date F&A 71T
of grant

e Additional 50% of the options shall become o HBRTS0%MEREENFLAR=A
exercisable upon the third anniversary of the date of FRA 7T
grant
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26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS

(Cont’d)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company
(Cont’d)

Options granted to director on 28 February 2011

e 50% of the options shall become exercisable on the
date of grant

e Additional 50% of the options shall become
exercisable after expiry of 9 January 2012

Options granted to employees on 28 February 2011

e 50% of the options shall become exercisable on the
date of grant

e Additional 50% of the options shall become
exercisable after expiry of 12 January 2012

Options granted to director and employees on 24
June 2013

e 50% of the options shall become exercisable on the
date of grant

e Additional 50% of the options shall become
exercisable after expiry of 23 June 2014

Under the Scheme and the New Scheme, the exercise
price is determined by the directors of the Company, and
will not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price
of the Company's shares on the date of grant, (i) the
average closing price of the shares for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s share.

No consideration is payable on the grant of an option.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ—=—ZF—F+ - =+—HIFFZF

26. MRGD BERNRRS (&)

FRRZRELEHBRETS ()

R-IE——F A=+ \HBFEEZE
B

o 50%ZMEMRENEE B AR FITE

o  FEIS0%HMBREAN _—T——F—
ANBTHERATITE

R-CE——F A=+ \HBFEEZE
B

o 50%ZMBREANE L R BEA F1T
:3

o FRINSO%HIBAEAN_-—T——F—
A+t -—HEGERATITE

R-IBE—=ZFNA-1+HARTFEEZERE
EZERE

o 50%ZMBREANE L R BEA T
:3

o FAINSO0%HBAEAN —FT—MER
AZ+T=Hx&EEAN TIE

RIBEZTEI A& (TEEHARAE
SEE - EBEMEROARARNRE L
BEIZ T E - (DR EEE L B A
hEEEB 2 FHRME : KA B
MZEEFZIESE -

RN BEEMS T ERNZKE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ - ZE—[1F+—-A=+—HIFFZ

26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS 26. LR AEBRARRS (£)

(Cont’d)
Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company KATRZREEEBRESS (£)
(Cont’d)
Details of specific categories of options are as follows: iz BBEMNZFERT
Options granted to directors and employees on 9 R-BEELtF+ANA —E—FF—H
October 2007, 19 January 2010 and 16 August 2010 tTAAR=ZF— ﬁ?f;f/lﬁ TAARTEE
RIESWERE

Fair value
Option type Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price at grant date

REE A H
BRESR it B BEH T fiEE ZRARE
2007 Option 09.10.2007 09.10.2007 to 08.10.2010 09.04.2008 to 08.10.2017 HK$0.368 HK$0.2253
T LFRERE 09.10.2007 09.10.2007%08.10.2010 09.04.2008%08.10.2017 0.368% L 0.225378 7T
2010 January Option 19.01.2010 19.01.2010 to 18.01.2013 19.07.2010 to 18.01.2020 HK$0.200 HK$0.1330

T-ZE-AREKRE  19.01.2010 19.01.2010£18.01.2013 19.07.2010%18.01.2020 0.200% 7 0.1330% 7

2010 August Option 16.08.2010 16.08.2010 to 15.08.2013 16.02.2011 to 15.08.2020 HK$0.840 HK$0.5289
—2-ZE)\RER 16.08.2010 16.08.2010%15.08.2013 16.02.2011%15.08.2020 0.840/ 1T 0.5289% 7T
Option granted to directors and employees on 28 R-E——F_FA-+/NARTEEZEKRE
February 2011 BZERE

Fair value
Option type Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price at grant date

R A
BRESR REAH BEH RS EE ZARE
2011 February Option
—2-—5_RERE
Grant to directors 28.02.2011 N/A 28.02.2011 t0 09.01.2021 HK$0.730 HK$0.3308
BTEs 28.02.2011 TEm 28.02.2011%09.01.2021 07357 03308%7T
Grant to directors 28.02.2011 28.02.2011 t0 09.01.2012 10.01.2012 t0 09.01.2021 HK$0.730 HK$0.3417
RTES 28.02.2011 28.02.2011209.01.2012 10.01.2012£09.01.2021 0.7387 0.341757L
Grant to employee 28.02.2011 N/A 28.02.2011 t0 12.01.2021 HK$0.714 HK$0.3366
HTEE 28.02.2011 TER 28.02.2011£12.01.2021 0.714% T 0.3366/5 7T
Grant to employee 28.02.2011 28.02.2011 t0 12.01.2012 13.01.2012 to 12.01.2021 HK$0.714 HK$0.3417
RTESE 28.02.2011 28.02.2011%12.01.2012 13.01.2012£12.01.2021 071487 03417% T
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ—=—ZF—F+ - =+—HIFFZF

26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS

(Cont’d)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company

(Cont’d)

Option granted to directors and employees on 24

26. MRGD BERNRRS (&)

FRRZRELEHBRETS ()

R-IE—=ZFNA-F+HARTFEEZERE

June 2013 BZERE
Fair value

Option type Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price at grant date

Rl B
BREER BREAH BES iid: e ZRARE
2013 June Option
ZT-=F RERE
Grant to directors 24.06.2013 N/A 24.06.2013 t0 23.06.2023 HK$0.1122 HK$0.0506
KTE% 24.06.2013 TEA 24.06.2013%23.06.2023 0112287t 0.0506/ 7T
Grant to directors 24.06.2013 24.06.2013 t0 23.06.2014 24.06.2014 t0 23.06.2023 HK$0.1122 HK$0.0522
BTES 24.06.2013 24.06.2013£23.06.2014 24.06.2014%23.06.2023 01122t 00522/ T
Grant to employee 24.06.2013 N/A 24.06.2013 t0 23.06.2023 HK$0.1122 HK$0.0506
BTEE 24.06.2013 TEA 24.06.2013%23.06.2023 01228 0.0506/ 7T
Grant to employee 24.06.2013 24.06.2013 t0 23.06.2014 24.06.2014 t0 23.06.2023 HK$0.1122 HK$0.0522
KTEE 24.06.2013 24.06.2013%23.06.2014 24.06.2014%23.06.2023 0112287t 0.0522/8 7T
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ=—F—/F+=-H=+—HIFFZF

26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS

26. LRGP BERNRS (&)

(Cont’d)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company ¥i

(Cont’d)

The following table discloses

options during 2014:

the movement of the share

>

ZRESHEBRESE (#F)

TERRER-T-—ME2BRETS :

Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed Expired Outstanding at
at 1.1.2014 during year during year during year during year 31.12.2014
R-B-O%F R-Z-NE
-A-8H +ZA=Z+-8
Option type BREER i RATE REARH RERTHE RERKHK REARZH i RATE
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
F F F F F F
Granted to directors KTE%F

2010 January Option —Z-SE-ARRE 1,800 - - - - 1,800
2011 February Option T AEKRE 65,000 - - - - 65,000
2013 June Option —E-=EXARRE 4,040 - - - - 4,040
70,840 - - - - 70,840

Exercisable AR-E-ME
at the end of 2014 FRITE 70,840

Granted to employees RTEE

2007 Option ZERLERRE 18,850 - - - - 18,850
2010 January Option —Z-ZFE-AEkE 11,780 - - (610) - 11,170
2010 August Option “T-ZEN\AEKRE 3,290 - - (310) - 2,980
2011 February Option —E——E-AERE 13,760 - - (490) - 13,270
2013 June Option “E-ZERARKRE 26,850 - (1,000) - - 25,850
74,530 - (1,000) (1,410 - 72,120

Exercisable ARZT—NE
at the end of 2014 FRITE 72,120

MRFRITEZEBRENS  BETFEA
H gl 2 NEFHRAE E0.2408 L (= F
— =% :0.12087) °

In respect of the share options exercised during the year,
the weighted average share price immediately before the
date of exercise is HK$0.240 (2013: HK$0.120).
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ=—ZF—F+ - =+—HIFFZF

26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS 26. LR AEBNRKE (&

(Cont’d)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company

(Cont’d)

The following table discloses the movement of the share

options during 2013:

FRARZRELEHBRESTS ()

TREBN -T—=F2BRE 2

Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed Expired Outstanding
at 1.1.2013 during year during year during year during year at 31.12.2013
R-Z-Z=% R-Z-Z%
-A—-H +ZA=Z+-8
Option type BREER i RATE REARH RERTHE RERKHK REARZH i RATIE
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
F F F F F F
Granted to directors KTESF

2010 January Option —Z-TE-ARRE 1,800 - - - - 1,800
2011 February Option “T——F-AEKRE 65,000 - - - - 65,000
2013 June Option —E-CZEXARKRE - 8,080 (4,040) - - 4,040
66,800 8,080 (4,040) - - 70,840

Exercisable AR-E—=F
at the end of 2013 FERITE 66,800

Granted to employees RTEE

2007 Option RS ERRE 26,720 - - (7,870) - 18,850
2010 January Option TR -ABRE 15,980 - - (4,200) - 11,780
2010 August Option “T-ZEN\AEKRE 8,000 - - (4,710) - 3,290
2011 February Option P AERE 18,050 - - (4,290) - 13,760
2013 June Option —E-ZERARKRE - 51,700 (23,850) (1,000) - 26,850
68,750 51,700 (23,850) (22,070) - 74,530

Exercisable ARZZ—=F
at the end of 2013 FRITE 49,680
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ=—ZF—/F+=-H=+—HIFFEF

26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS 26. LR AEBRARRS (£)

(Cont’d)
Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company KATRZREEEBRESS (£)
(Cont’d)
Options were priced using binomial option pricing model. ERESDA-EAERETER{ERE-
The inputs into the model were as follows: R 2@ ABWLT :
2013 June option
—E-ZEXABERE
Granted to Granted to
directors employees
BFES RTEER
Share price i (B HK$0.10187c  HK$0.101%8 7T
Exercise price I(EME HK$0.11228 7T  HK$0.1122/8 7T
Expected volatility T8 B R 1@ 64.099% 64.099%
Expected dividend yield TEHA R B & 0.000% 0.000%
Risk-free interest rate R b X 2.104% 2.104%
The volatilities adopted were based on average annualised BRTIBRIBARB R MELEREUERD
standard deviations of the continuously compounded rates AR ARNEERBRENFERE D
of return of the share prices of the Company and two WMENTHFEREEFTH -
comparable companies with similar business nature of the
Company as of the valuation date.
In relation to the share options granted by the Company, BEAARBIR THBIRE REBBRE
the Group recognised the total expense of approximately ET-NFEF+_A=T—HILFEHEE
RMB592,000 in cost of sales, distribution and selling A DEFEEBRUALEEEAS
expenses as well as administrative expenses for the BT ABARKES92,000 (ZF—=
year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: RMB2,252,000) F: AR¥2,252,0007T) @ & IR AR
according to the function of the grantees. AZBRBEERE

4< Annual Report 2014 =S — I F F 3§ SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED 5% 4 (£8) RHER AR ) 111




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R aR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ=—ZF—F+ - =+—HIFFZF

27. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 27. HEAE
The Group as lessee rEBEERAEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RBERAR - AEERBEEANESHE
commitments for future minimum lease payments under WA CEHEREREREHES
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented Nk HE Bz AT :

premises which fall due as follows:

2014 2013
—E-NF —E-=%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT
Within one year —FA 754 2,179
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FZEERF
(BHREEMSF) 5 866
759 3,045
Leases are negotiated and fixed for terms of one to two HELKHFNYEEAR—ZE2-2F (=%
years (2013: one to three years). —=F:—E=F)o
28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 2. BERZRS
The Group entered into the following related party REERFANETUTHELIR S :
transactions during the year:
e Compensation of key management personnel e ITEZEEEAEME
The remuneration of directors and other members of RFEEEERETEEEEZKE 2
key management during the year were as follows: Gy Ul
2014 2013
—E-IF —T=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT
Short-term employee benefits HEEERF 2,560 2,812
Retirement scheme contributions RRAE N ET B 5K
benefits 245 251
Share options granted to directors RESNEERTZ
and employees i i 317 1,098
3,122 4,161
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ=—ZF—/F+=-H=+—HIFFEF

28.

29.

= B 55 8 AR MY A

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

8.BELXRE (&)

e Rental expenses o MHEMX

2014 2013
—E-mF —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ T AR TF T

Rentals paid to Sing Lee XATET R B g O

Pharmaceutical Import & Export BRABKNMAE

Co., Limited for lease of BUME®

office premises 500 498

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had
commitments of approximately RMB249,000 (2013:
RMB249,000) for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases for the next
year in respect of office premises with a related
company, Sing Lee Pharmaceutical Import & Export
Co., Limited, which Mr. Hung Yung Lai has 50%
equity interest with joint control in this entity.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets
of the scheme are held separately from those of the
Group, in funds under the control of trustees. The
Group contributed 5% of relevant payroll costs to the
scheme, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$25,000, which contribution is matched by employees.

The employees of the Group in the PRC are members of
state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by
the respective local governments in the PRC. The Group
is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll
costs to the schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to these schemes is
to make the specified contributions.

R-ZE-—NF+_A=+—H T
FER—RBERQR [ 88 EE N
ABERAR] (RRRBLEENRZER
FEES0% = I ¥ H B H R 5 5 #)
HERREYE RNEBEFT 7 TAE
BZEERAY BRI AEED R KRR
THEMH - EEAEDAREE249,000
T(ZE—=F: AR¥249,000
JT) °

9. RIKAE AT E

REBAFBAREENEGEREEEER
HERAEETE -ZAECEERAEH
REEDFABZE UTHESAUESER-
REERABSHEMEZHRRABERT
BN 25% A% LR A25,0008 7T - i
BB 2L I ER -

AEEETRzBEEABPESHTRK
fFegrBRERRRBANGEZKE -
AEEBRFHAAZHET D LABRE
AEIERAMERRREZES - AEEY
ArEIC BT ERELSE ZHK-

4( Annual Report 2014 —Z—FFf

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED 7|4 (£H) RHER AT )

113



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R aR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ=—ZF—/F+ - =+—HIFFZF

30. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY

Details of the Group’s subsidiaries at the end of the

reporting period are set out below.

N
BN

S

JiE]

o

B /8

30. AR BB AR 2518

AR E IR Z F 1587 40

Country of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and fully Proportion of Proportion of
establishment/ paid share capital/ voting power ownership interest
Name of company operations registered capital held by the Company for 2014 and 2013 Principal activities
ERAL/ R/ BEARMERE/ FRRERL B2014ER
LRER EEER EMERZFE SRWLA WIBEREFIL TEEH
2014 2013 Direct Indirect
—E-mF —T-=% R B
Sing Lee Electronics (B.V.I.) Co., British Virgin Islands 715 shares of 100% 100% 100% - Investment holding
Ltd. ("Singlee BVI")’ HBRLHE US$1 each REER
Sing Lee Electronics (B.V.I.) Co., TSR EREE
Ltd. (T#7#IBVI J)! (Ed) 3
Singlee Software? PRC Registered capital 100% 100% - 100% Development and sales of
RN i US$4,325,500 software products, sales of
4,325,500% T related hardware products and
HMER provision of software-related
technical services
RRAMHERHER HERRE
HER ARRESEEZR
il
Singlee Technology? PRC Registered capital 100% 100% - 100% Development and sales of
R H US$6,714,000 software products, sales of
6,714,000% 7T related hardware products and
FHER provision of software-related
technical services
RAMBEERHER HERBE
HER WRREBHRAZR
kR
Singlee Zhuhai® PRC Registered capital 100% 100% - 100% Inactive
e il US$1,250,000 Tasx
1,250,000% T
HMER
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30. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 30 AR BB AR 2518 (&)
COMPANY (Cont’d)

Country of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and fully Proportion of Proportion of
establishment/ paid share capital/ voting power ownership interest
Name of company operations registered capital held by the Company for 2014 and 2013 Principal activities
ERAYL/ R/ BEARMRRE/ NG B2014ER
RAER EEEX EMER2FHE REELH WIBEREFIL TEXE
2014 2013 Direct Indirect
—E-mF —T-=% HE Gk
Beijing Singlee? PRC Registered capital 100% 100% - 100% Inactive
LA Gk RMB1,000,000 TEex
AR 1,000,0007
HMER
Xin YinTong? PRC Registered capital 100% 100% - 100% Inactive
b R Gk RIB100,000,000 Taex
AR %100,000,0007
HMER
L Singlee BVI is a limited liability company incorporated in the British ! FRBVIRTERBRZHESTMAINEREE
Virgin Islands. NS
2 Singlee Software and Beijing Singlee are wholly foreign owned 2 MEM RAL TR BB INE R -
enterprises.
3 Singlee Technology, Singlee Zhuhai and Xin YinTong are sino-foreign 3 AR « #T R BRO8 RFTR i A 1 R B A S A9 R
equity joint ventures established in the PRC. INEBEEERT
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at BEFHERIL MELCHAMKMEBARETE
the end of the year or at any time during the year. AEES -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ=—ZF—F+ - =+—HIFFZF

31. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK 3. EXAERE ke EAREIEE N REK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES ®

() EXxERER

(a) Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to stakeholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of
borrowing from directors and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising share capital,
share premium, accumulated losses and other
reserves.

The directors review the capital structure on a semi-
annual basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations
of the directors, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or
the redemption of existing debt.

AEEERLARETRRAEEZ
ERTNSEEE LEBEICA RS
SV F IINCT S PNE
e AEERR  ARE Y EEE
SR

AEBzERARBREKRBES 2
ERARBEAANRIGRA (EFE
FRRRAR - B (8 - REtB R R EARE
&) o

EEEYXF - ARANERRE-ER
Bz —&n BEEGEEERKAN
REEBRRIENAREZRER KAEHE
BiRBEEEZE2Z EBMRE
BITHRARBITHESLELRE
BHERTFEEERBEARE

(b) Categories of financial instruments (b) EWMITAEHR

2014 2013
—E-IF —F—=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥FTT AR For

Financial assets THEE

Loans and receivables (including Bk ERFE(BE

bank balances and cash) RITHEHRNIRE) 30,523 24,134
Held for trading investments BIEEERE 697 769
31,220 24,903

Financial liabilities THEEE
Amortised cost B S5 AR 52,418 40,792
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ=—ZF—/F+=-H=+—HIFFEF

31. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK 3. EXAE ke EAMREE BN REK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES xR (&)
(Cont’d)

(0 ¢REREEANRKE

(c) Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group’'s financial instruments include loan
receivable, trade and other receivables, held
for trading investments, bank balances and
cash, amounts due to directors, amount due
to a shareholder, trade and other payables and
borrowings. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market
risk (interest rate risk, currency risk and other price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Market risk

(i) Currency risk

The Group has foreign currency sales and
purchases and certain receivables, bank balances
and cash, trade and other payables, amounts
due to directors, amount due to a shareholder
and borrowings of the Group are denominated
in United States dollar (“US$") and Hong
Kong dollar (“HK$"), currencies other than
the functional currency of the respective group
entities, which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk. The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy. However,
the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure when the need arises.

AEBZEMTIABRERKER &
WESREMER FIEEERE
RiTEBRMES BNESSHE BN
BREE BNESDREMBERAR
fEE - ZEeMITAZFHFBEREME
PRE-EZEERTAMABZEAR
BREMSER (FERR SRR
kEMERRR ) EERR MRS
BxRER - BERMNABEZFRRZ
HERHENTX -EBREEERERZ
FRBR AR LERRBER TR
BaEZER-

% 3

() E¥ERE

AEBAINEHERRKRE AR
SHZE TRKFOR - RITHER
kEE BNEZREMBER.
FETEE KA BN BRRKIA
REEAET ([E7T]) RABTT
(MEr]) (ZEEBALIFREE
BEREER)HE A
B AAEINE R - NEE B Al
I 48 AT AA] S8 S P BOSR » AR T
EEESERIMNERR  ©BEER
EEEPERNINE AR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ=—ZF—/F+ - =+—HIFFZF

31. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK 3. EXERkemEMREEB N RK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES xR (#E&)
(Cont’d)
(c) Financial risk management objectives and (0 SRBEAKREEENREE (&)

policies (Cont’d)
Market risk (Cont’d)
(i) Currency risk (Cont’d)

The carrying amount of the foreign currency

o

T mEg (E)

EEmEbRE (%)

HIRASNEFHENERE

denominated monetary assets and monetary EXBENREENT
liabilities at the end of the reporting period are
as follows:
2014 2013
“E-0fF —2-=
Assets Assets Liabilities
& EE af
RMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000
ARETT ANEEFT  ARETT
Us$ ey 765 1,057 611
HK$ AT 334 1,152 30,468
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ - ZE—1F+—-A=+—HIFFZ

EXEREERERE

: EERRER
R (#)

31. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(Cont’d)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Cont’d)

() EREAKREEBNREE (&)

Market risk (Cont’d) HEREE ()
(i) Currency risk (Cont'd) () EXER(E)

The following table details the sensitivity to
a 5% (2013: 5%) change in the RMB against
US$ and HK$. The 5% (2013: 5%) represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in the foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analyses of the Group’s exposure
to foreign currency risk at the end of the
reporting period have been determined based on
the adjustment of translation of the monetary
assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting
period for a 5% (2013: 5%) change in foreign
currency rates. A positive (negative) number
indicates an increase (decrease) in the post-
tax profit (2013: a (negative) positive number

TERFAVNAEBHAREBHET
MAETERZEH% (ZT—=
F 5% )MNBRRE %5% (=&
—=F:5% ) EEEBRFTHIN
BEE P R ) A 3R P] B B B IR AR A
BRELLL R - RRERBER A
SEHIINERBHOBEEDITTY
ERMERREBEERAER
INEESTERNS%EEH (ZF—=
F 5% )2 MEZRAE-E(B)
ﬁ&%AE%R%E&%E%@
BEBRB RN (3G R -
E%R%E&%Ehﬁwﬂ:
T—=F:5%)IEKRERZERN

indicates an (increase) decrease in the post-tax (E51E) &R ARIMER T2 -
loss) where RMB strengthens against US$ and
HK$. For a 5% (2013: 5%) weakening of RMB
against US$ and HK$, there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the post-tax profit (loss).
2014 2013
—F-0F —F—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT AREFT
Change in the post-tax BREERF, BREL
profit/loss
If RMB strengthens against US$ i A R XN ETHE (12) (24)
If RMB strengthens against HK$ i A R # 58 T FHE 1,672 1,467
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ=—ZF—F+ - =+—HIFFZF

N EXERREREAREEBNRIK
® (#)

31. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont’d)

() *REREEENREE (£)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Cont’d)

Market risk (Cont’d) mEEE (&)

(i) Currency risk (Cont’d) () EEgE (&)
This is mainly attributable to the net exposure to D EZHRRERSHARART
outstanding foreign currency receivables, bank HEREWINE RITHEBRAS
balances and cash, trade and other payables, ENESREMER ENES
amounts due to directors, amount due to a FOE - EA R EFIERETTRE
shareholder and borrowings in US$ or HK$ at TS B i 2 B B
end of the reporting period.

(i) Interest rate risk management (i) FF @ &

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed-rate unsecured loans from
a director (see note 24 for details).

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable rate bank
balances (see note 20 for details) and variable
rate borrowings (see note 24 for details). The
management will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposure should the need arise.

AEEAREEBEARESEE
(ERRIEm2HME24) A2
RAENRER -

ARSI IR R A R B RIT
(R RMIRE20) AT R IE R
(BB LM FE24) RS R EFIF
M EEE RN BN Y
REATIE AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ - ZE—/1F+—-A=+—HIFFZ

31. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK 3. EXAE ke EAMREE BN REK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES xR (&)
(Cont’d)
(c) Financial risk management objectives and () tRERSEENREE (&)

policies (Cont’d)

Market risk (Cont’d) mEEE (&)

(i) Interest rate risk management (Cont’d) (i) F)EEfpEFE (&)
Interest rate sensitivity analysis TR GRRE DT
The sensitivity analysis has been determined BRE ST TIRBEIEITE TAR
based on the exposure to variable interest rate iﬁ%ﬁﬂ%ﬂ &R 2 F B K R B
for non-derivative instruments at the end of MEE DT RE R RS B
the reporting period. The analysis is prepared BEREZEETEMIARES
assuming the financial instruments outstanding BEETME AN TRS0E
at the end of the reporting period were BH(ZZ—=:50E%) EERE
outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis points B R F =& IB Al g L PR VERY AT
(2013: 50 basis points) increase or decrease fly o
in interest rate represents management's
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.
If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2013: WA EEFHTES0ES (=T
50 basis points) higher/lower and all other —=f:50EH) MAA#HE
variable were held constant, the Group's post- BRI AEEHRE-_FT—NH
tax profit for the year ended 31 December F+ZA=T—BLFEZH
2014 would decrease/increase by RMB167,000 BAEEERDEMARE
(2013: post-tax loss would increase/decrease by 167,000 (ZE—=F : Fi1&
RMB294,000). This is mainly attributable to the 5B 0, E > AR 294,000
Group's exposure to interest rates on its variable ) EEHRAEEZSEE
rate borrowings. ) M) 2 L B BT B
No sensitivity analysis is presented for the HEZZ—HNFEFR-ZT—=F
insignificant floating rate bank balances for the +=—RA=+—8 JJ:¢J§ CREHE
years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013. WEMF BRITARERBRAE

DT
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ=—ZF—/F+ - =+—HIFFZF

31. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK 3. EXERkemEMREEB N RK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES xR (#E&)
(Cont’d)
(c) Financial risk management objectives and (0 SRBEAKREEENREE (&)
policies (Cont’d)

Market risk (Cont’d) mEEE (F)
(iii) Other price risk (i) B 1515 R S

ANEEEIEEHESIRE MmASE
BAERRR AEEBCHBE

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its investments in unlisted funds. The

sensitivity analyses have been determined on the
exposure to the market price risks at the end of
reporting period. If the prices of the investments
in unlisted funds had been 5% higher or
lower, the post-tax profit for the year ended
31 December 2014 would increase or decrease
by approximately RMB35,000 (2013: post-tax
loss would decrease or increase by RMB39,000)
respectively as a result of the changes in fair

IR M ERERETHRRE
O MEEIFLTESEKRED
B EAXTH®S% HEZZT
—ME+—_A=+—HIFEN
RefEEeRFEEERER
R EEZEMIE NI D AR
35,000 (=2 —=F HEE
B MR k1 o A R 39,000
7T e

value on financial assets classified as held-for-
trading.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ=—ZF—F+=-H=+—HIFFZF

31. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK 3. EXAE ke EARERE BN REK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES xR (&)
(Cont’d)

() *REAREEANREE (&)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Cont’d)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’'s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation
by the counterparties is arising from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial assets,
which is stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

The directors continuously evaluate the
creditworthiness and financial strength of the
counterparty of the loan receivable as well as
considering potential business development of the
counterparty. The term of the loan receivable is
stipulated in a loan agreement. The loan receivable
due from the counterparty is a private entity which
engaged in research and development of software.

The Group also has policies in place to ensure that
sales of products are made and services are provided
to customers with an appropriate credit history and
the Group assesses the credit worthiness and financial
strength of its customers as well as considering
prior dealing history with the customers. Generally,
customers are granted with credit periods from 120
— 180 days and the Group usually does not require
collaterals from its customers. An ageing analysis of
trade receivables is set out in note 17.

=EEmE

RZTE—NWF+ZA=+—H &%
BREARXZHFRERBITAHRERAE
B BEAMEYE 2 ZAEERRIR
BRER A BRI 3R BTN AE B B R
TREEZREE-

EEERANEREERZE T Z
EERMREN TEEEEHF
BEZAREREN BRERZIF
HHEERBETRE HREERZHE
FHREESRME XZHFR/ALA
DA T

REBINET A BURERE MiEE &R
BREHRTEEREGELHENES -
mMASRBE T EELPNEELER
MBEENURZEERRBEFRBAER
Stk BPF —MRERNMN1208 7
180RMEEH  mMAEE —RTEK
BERREER BRAEKEZERD
FHROMERMT17 - EEETHR
BZEMNRLE o™ UHKE
NEBEGER S F&E HeedlE
FEUR B 5 IR FRETTE R R BB A RIFTE
He-REME  AARESRAELEE
ZIEERBE RKREIK-
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z - ZE—[/1F+—-A=+—HIFFZ

31. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK 3. EXAERE ke EAREIEE N REK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES xR (#E)
(Cont’d)
(c) Financial risk management objectives and () *REARESEENREE (&)

policies (Cont’d)

Credit risk (Cont’d) =EmE (&)

Management makes periodic individual assessment as EEREBTHRENRLE BHE
well as collective assessment on the recoverability of F'EJ CBEPUBENREEFERZF
trade receivables based on historical payment records, ¥ B U B YR AR SGE T (E R
the length of the overdue period, the financial ﬁéﬁfpﬂ?ﬁ ki 'Zli RAEER
strength of the customers and whether there are any BRAEE ZEERRE RKER-

trade disputes with them. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risk of 21% Zli’ilféi\?%g%ﬁi&—*%%é%qﬂﬁk
(2013: 20%) of the total trade receivables was RER21% T—=F:20%)
due from the Group's top five largest customers in ZEH&ZT T Iﬁﬁ'EEEEﬂXE@ZﬂK
the provision of software-related technical support ¥PRE- ﬁt ERWE SHFRIBTIE K&
services business segment. RETHREERT S ERSE CEBD
o
The credit risk of the Group on liquid funds is limited HRABABEFHAEERIFNEEA
because the majority of the counterparties are state- BITH M A B ERT NEENRE
owned banks and local commercial banks with good EeEERBRER-
reputation.
Liquidity risk REE2EE
As set out in note 2, the Group is currently WM EE2 AT RAJTE R A 2R - N
dependent upon the continuing financial support TAKBEARARRBERFE N 2R
from the shareholder with significant influence over RUEBGETHMBF REINZINK
the Company and additional external funding to BeRHBEIR UENDEBZH®
meet in full its financial obligation as they fall due EEEZHRARRBEATENZ
for the foreseeable future. With the support from RERFBINZIKRES Z2ZF AR
the shareholder with significant influence over the AERERAE ARG ZRBESR
Company and the additional external funding, the b B AT AE

management of the Company consider that the
Group's liquidity risk has been reduced.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ=—ZF—/F+=-H=+—HIFFEF

N EXERREREAREERERNRIK
R (#)

31. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and () tRERSEENREE (&)
policies (Cont’d)
Liquidity risk (Cont’d) mEBELEE (&)

TRARNEB ZHEGTEMELSRERE

BTARIBBEZHFB - ZRTIVIER

SHBERANEESRRAIHERER

ZHEHZ RBRBESRER L RE

MBERETERESRE

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities

o

based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows.

Liquidity risk table FF E e & &
Weighted  On demand Total
average  or less than Over undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 1 year cash flows amount
ik BREXRY ARBRES

TF% -FREER —-FEpt REAE RHEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
% AREFT ARETT AREFT AREFT

2014 —E-mF
Trade and other payables BRESREMER - 11,686 - 11,686 11,686
Amounts due to directors ERESRE - 775 - 775 775
Amount due to a shareholder ~ ERFARR A - " - 1 1
Loans from a director EEER 3.25% 10,047 35,484 45,531 37,068
Bank borrowing RITEE 7.53% 645 2,949 3,594 2,878
23,164 38,433 61,597 52,418

2013 —EB-=F
Trade and other payables BRESREMER - 7,626 - 7,626 7,626
Amounts due to directors ERNEERE - 903 - 903 903
Amount due to a shareholder  JESRR B 7B - 11 - 11 1
Loans from a director EZEX 3.25% 6,040 35,868 41,908 32,252
14,580 35,868 50,448 40,792
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z - ZE—[/1F+—-A=+—HIFFZ

31. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont’d)

EXEREERERE

: EENREK
® (#)

() EREAREEBNREE (&)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Cont’d)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

The determination of fair value of investments in
unlisted fund held for trading is disclosed in note 19.

Except as detailed in the following table, the directors
of the Company consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.

AV}

BEREFEEHFLTESREAAE
HIREE - IOP FE193% FR

B NRFLEIN RRBEFTRAL
REBHEKATER GV BERRNE
MEELTRAGNEREREAA
(EREES

Carrying values Fair values
REE DA
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mF “F-ZF —E-mE ZT-=%
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEEFT ARETFT AEEFR ANRETFT
Loans from a director BEZER 37,068 32,252 35,673 30,303

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to loss on
initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1
to 3 based on the degree to which the fair values is
observable.

e Level 1 fair value measurements are those
derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
market for identical assets or liabilities.

e level 2 fair value measurements are those
derived from inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices)
or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

DA EF BB E BRI HE

TREHRRBERAABEZEBERR
AEESRTIAZON KE-—ELE
FRBABEENRAAEATRERED
BE-

. %* MASEFETIRBERE
mISH A BRI EEL B ENRE

s F_ERRREENBEREE
FEBEZRMAELIFBENE—
BRANZHRE EAIEZM (E
%) S (B BRI fR) AT
BR(E_ER) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ=—ZF—F+=-H=+—HIFFZF

31. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK 3. EXAE ke EARERE BN REK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES xR (&)
(Cont’d)
(c) Financial risk management objectives and () *tRERSEENREE (&)

policies (Cont’d)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments ARAME(E)

(Cont’d)

Fair value measurements recognised in the DA EFFE BRGSO HRE

consolidated statement of financial position (Cont’d) (&)

e Level 3 fair value measurements are those e ZE-EHMAnBHEDEHWEE
derived from valuation techniques that include B E 2 WA B IR A E
inputs for the asset or liability that are not based Remis8E (BERE @A
on observable market data (unobservable inputs). ‘) -

2014
“E-mE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E-Ef E_EfR BZER R
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTL  ARETr  AREFTn  AREFR

Financial assets at FVTPL ERERBLAABNEREE

Held for trading investments BIEEERE - 697 - 697
2013
—T-=F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F-ER FZER FZER it
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000

ANERTT  ANEETT  ARETx  ARETx

Financial assets at FVTPL ERERBLAABNEREE

Held for trading investments BEEERE - 769 - 769
There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in the AEEE—EBRARE_EH 2 EILE
current year. G E
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ=—ZF—/F+ - =+—HIFFZF

32. SUMMARISED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF 32. AR B EERHE

THE COMPANY

2014 2013
—F-NF —F=F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥Fr AREFT
Property, plant and equipment TEE WEREHE 1 8
Interests in subsidiaries NSNS - -
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE UR B BB A R FRIB 26,567 26,030
Current assets mENEE 1,180 2,108
Current liabilities mEBEE (3,220) (3,256)
Non-current liabilities ERMEBEE (30,493) (27,157)
(5,965) (2,267)
Share capital (Note 25) R&AS (Hfit25) 8,360 8,352
Reserves (Note) f# (Hat) (14,325) (10,619)
(5,965) (2,267)
Note: it -
Share
Share options Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
R E BRERRE 2itEE &ast
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKTFT AR FT ARETFT ARBFT
At 1 January 2013 R-_ZE—=F—HF—H 151,770 38,882 (200,559) (9,907)
Loss and total comprehensive expense for ARNEEEE L2 E
the year XA - - (5,220) (5,220)
Exercise of share options REFITEZERE 3,373 (1,117) - 2,256
Lapse of share options REFRB BIRIE - (9,915) 9,915 -
Recognition of equity-settled share-based #E 2% 1 45 & A K19 &
payments EAR - 2,252 - 2,252
At 31 December 2013 R-_E—=
+-—A=+—H 155,143 30,102 (195,864) (10,619)
Loss and total comprehensive expense AFEEEEREERS B
for the year - - (4,298) (4,298)
Exercise of share options NEZITE 2 AR 42 (42) -
Lapse of share options KEFRBRZ B E - (328) 328 -
Recognition of equity-settled share-based & 72 B 18 45 E LA B 1D B
payments ERAR - 592 592
At 31 December 2014 RIZE—MF
+=ZA=+—H 155,185 30,324 (199,834) (14,325)
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